Groundwater Sustainability Commission
for the San Luis Obispo Valley Groundwater Basin

Agenda
March 17,2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Groundwater Sustainability Commission will hold a Special Meeting at 3:30
p.m. on Thursday, March 17, 2022 at the County Government Center, Board of Supervisors Chambers, 1055
Monterey St., San Luis Obispo, CA 93408.

Call-in: (669) 900-6833, Webinar ID: 857 6276 3355, Passcode: 190575
Zoom Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85762763355?pwd=c21wL251QzdoaWs5NndjQUNFMmt6QT09

Teleconference Locations:

County Government Center Golden State Water Company
1055 Monterey St. District Office
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 2330 A Street, Suite A

Santa Maria, CA 93455

NOTE: The Groundwater Sustainability Commission (GSC) reserves the right to limit each speaker to three (3) minutes
per subject or topic. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, all possible accommodations will be made
for individuals with disabilities, so they may participate in the meeting. Persons who require accommodation for any
audio, visual or other disability in order to participate in the meeting of the GSC are encouraged to request such
accommodation 48 hours in advance of the meeting from Taylor Blakslee at (661) 477-3385.

Dawn Ortiz-Legg, Member, County of SLO Bruce Gibson, Alternate, County of SLO
Bob Schiebelhut, Chair, EVGMWC George Donati, Alternate, EVGMWC
Dennis Fernandez, Member, ERMWC/VRMWC James Lokey, Alternate, ERMWC/VRMWC
Mark Zimmer, Vice Chair, GSWC Toby Moore, Alternate, GSWC
Andy Pease, Member, City of San Luis Obispo Aaron Floyd, Alternate, City of San Luis Obispo

1. Call to Order (Schiebelhut) (1 min)

2. Roll Call (Blakslee) (1 min)

3. Meeting Protocols (Blakslee) (3 min)

4. Pledge of Allegiance (Schiebelhut) (1 min)

5. Public Comment - Items not on Agenda (Schiebelhut) (3 min/Speaker)

6. Approval of Meeting Minutes (Schiebelhut) (3 min)

a) February9, 2022

N

Approval of Water Year 2021 Annual Report for the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin (Reely) (5 min)
8. Update from Groundwater Sustainability Director (Reely) (20 min)
9. Future Items (Schiebelhut/Reely) (5 min)
a) Consider Format for Future GSC Meetings
b) Next Regular Meeting
10. Adjourn (Schiebelhut) (4:15 p.m.)



Agenda Item No. 6

Groundwater Sustainability Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)
February 9, 2022

The following members or alternates were present:

Bob Schiebelhut, Chair, EVGMWC

Mark Zimmer, Vice Chair, GSWC

Dennis Fernandez, Member / James Lokey, Alternate Member, ERMWC/VRMWC
Andy Pease, Member, City of San Luis Obispo

Dawn Ortiz-Legg, Member, County of San Luis Obispo (joined at 3:03 pm)

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Schiebelhut: calls the meeting to order at 3:30 PM.
City Staff, Mychal Boerman: calls roll.

Chair Schiebelhut: leads the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Request To Consider
Adopting a Resolution
Authorizing the
Groundwater
Sustainability
Commission to
Continue Remote
Teleconferencing

Motion By: Member Pease

Second By: Member Zimmer

Motion: The Commission moves to adopt a resolution authorizing the
Groundwater Sustainability Commission to continue remote
teleconferencing of public meetings based on the findings that COVID-19
remains a serious risk to public health and safety

Members Ayes | Noes | Abstain | Recuse

Bob Schiebelhut (Chair)

Mark Zimmer (Vice Chair)

Dawn Ortiz-Legg (Member)

Andy Pease (Member)

X X XXX

James Lokey (Alternate Member)

5. Public Comment -
Items not on Agenda

-None-

6. Approval of Meeting
Minutes:

a) October 6, 2021

b) October 20, 2021

Chair Schiebelhut: asks for comments from the Commission, and then
from the public — there are none.

Motion By: Alternate Member Lokey

Second By: Member Pease

Motion: The Commission moves to approve the October 6, 2021 and
October 20, 2021 meeting minutes.

Members s | Noes | Abstain | Recuse

Bob Schiebelhut (Chair)

Mark Zimmer (Vice Chair)

Dawn Ortiz-Legg (Member)

Andy Pease (Member)

><><><><><~f<§

James Lokey (Alternate Member)

7. Amendment to
Appendix A of the

County Staff, Brandon Zuniga: presents on the recommended update to the
Commission’s Conflict of Interest Code, which consists of adding the




Groundwater Sustainability Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)
February 9, 2022

Commission’s Conflict of | County’s Groundwater Sustainability Director position to the designated
Interest Code position list.

Chair Schiebelhut: opens the floor for public comments — there are none.

Motion By: Member Pease

Second By: Member Zimmer

Motion: The Commission moves to adopt a resolution amending
Appendix A of Commission Code to add the County of San Luis Obispo
Groundwater Sustainability Director position to the designated position
list.

Members

Bob Schiebelhut (Chair)

Mark Zimmer (Vice Chair)

Dawn Ortiz-Legg (Member)
Andy Pease (Member)

James Lokey (Alternate Member)

s | Noes | Abstain | Recuse

><><><><><%:

8. Receive Presentation on | County Staff, Brandon Zuniga and GSI Water Solutions, Inc., David
Draft Water Year 2021 O’Rourke: present on the Draft Water Year 2021 Annual Report for the

Annual Report for the SLO Basin, including:
San Luis Obispo Valley e SGMA requirements
Basin e Schedule and public comment period (February 14, 2022 -

February 23, 2022)

e An overview of components of the Annual Report, including
groundwater elevation contours, monitoring well hydrographs,
groundwater extraction estimates, surface water supply, total water
use, and change in groundwater storage

e Annual Report Due: April 1, 2022

After Commission discussion, Chair Schiebelhut opens the floor for public
comment.

Bob Shanbrom: speaks.

e Groundwater Sustainability Director introduction — March 9, 2022
e Approval of Water Year 2021 Annual Report for the SLO Basin

9. Future Items

10. Adjourn The Commission adjourns the meeting at 4:33 pm.

DRAFTED BY: City and County Staff




GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION
March 17, 2022

Agenda Item 7 — Approval of Water Year 2021 Annual Report for the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin

Recommendation

a) Approve the Water Year 2021 Annual Report for the SLO Basin

Prepared by
Blaine Reely, County of San Luis Obispo Groundwater Sustainability Director

Discussion

In compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, annual reports on basin sustainability
metrics and progress on Groundwater Sustainability Plan implementation must be submitted to the California
Department of Water Resources (DWR) by April 1st of each year. The Water Year 2020-2021 Annual Report
(October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021) is provided as Attachment 1 for consideration of approval.



San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability
Committee
and the Groundwater Sustainability Agencies

San Luis Obispo Valley Groundwater Basin
Annual Report

(Water Years 2020-2021)

March 11, 2022

Prepared by:
GSI Water Solutions, Inc.
5855 Capistrano Avenue, Suite C, Atascadero, CA 93422



This page intentionally left blank.



San Luis Obispo Valley Basin
Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

This report was prepared by the staff of GSI Water Solutions, Inc. and Cleath-Harris Geologists, Inc.
under the supervision of professionals whose signatures appear below. The findings or professional

opinion were prepared in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering and geologic
practice.

Dave O’Rourke, PG, CHg
Principal Hydrogeologist
Project Manager

Spencer Harris, PG, CHg, CEG
Senior Hydrogeologist



This page intentionally left blank.



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Contents
L0701 (=7 ) £ %
PaY o] oL oA VA= LuT0] aEST= T oo I Yot £0) 01 2 1 ST iX
Annual Report Elements Guide and ChECKIIST.......uuuiiiiieiiiies et Xi
EXECULIVE SUMMANY (8§ 356.2[@]) . cuueereirererririerieiseersaiseeesssseeesesseeesassseesssssresassssresssssseesassssessssssnessssssnessnssnnesssssnes 1
o Yo L0 T3 [0} o 1
LCT 0T8T o AV = L =T gl = 1=V z= L o] g 1
LC T T8 Yo AT = 1 (=T g =T = Tod ¥ (0] T 2
YU TeTS I A =L =T £ 2
LI = L= 1 g L= 2
Change in GroUuNAWATEr IN STOTAZE .....uuieiieiiee e cciiee e cette e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e ise e e e sesee e e s sseesesseeessasneeeesasneesennnnes 3
Progress towards Meeting Basin SUSTaiNability .....c.eeicciieieiiiie e 3
SECTION 1: Introduction -- San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)................... 7
ST u o T= A= g Lo I 2 7= Tod 18 = 10 o [o I PSPPSRI 7
1.2 Organization Of THiS REPOI.....cocii ettt s s st e s e e e sse e s se e e s eeesnnenesneesaseanas 9
SECTION 2: San Luis Obispo Basin Setting and Monitoring NetWOrks ..o 10
B2 R 1o 1 0T [¥ o1 o) o O PPSPT PR 10
B = 7= 1Y TR 1= V=R 10
2.3 Precipitation and ClIMatiC PEriOUS. .. ... uuiiienureennuerenererraeseee——————.———————————.ererere.. 11
2.4 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (§ 356.2[D]) «ueeeecerrrrreiiirerierriee s s e e cceerree s s s e s sneeee e e s s e e s snnneeeeesesesnannns 13
241 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring LOCAtIONS......cueeii it cer e e e e e e s e 13
2.4.2 MORNITOrING DAA GAPS ...uveeeeeeraneeraeeeeieeerrseesaeesssseessseesaseeessseesaseessseesseeasaseesaneeesnsessaseesaneesaseesaseesan 15
2.5 AddItIONAl MONITOIING ..neeeeeieeee e e e e e e e e s e e e s e e s e e e s e e s s se e sane e s esee e sseesneesaneesenneesneesannesanneesaneesanes 15
SECTION 3: Groundwater Elevations (8 356.2[D][L])..eteeiecrrerrrerreririrreririeressssseessssssnessssseessssssessssssnessssssnesssssenes 16
G 0 N 1 o Yo 11 o o 16
3.1.1 e aTod o X LI o T 11 (=] £ USRI 16
3.2 Seasonal High and Low (Spring and Fall) (§ 356.2[D][L][A]) cceeeereerrrrerrarerrrieerrreerrseeeaeesssesssseesseesssseanas 16
3.2.1 Basin Aquifer Groundwater Elevation CONtOUIS .......ueiiiiiiiiiciiien et 17
3.3 Hydrographs (§ 356.2[D][L][B]) .ccsseeeeesrerrrarreerrarrrersrasseesssisesssasseesssasseessssssesssssssesssasssesssassesssssssesssessseessans 28
3.3.1 Y0 L0 ==Y o SR 28
SECTION 4: Groundwater EXtractions (§ 356.2[D][2]) eeeeeeeeerrerrererrirrreieieeesseiseessssssresssssseessssssesssssseesssssssessssssees 29
N R 1 (o o 18 o3 4o [ PRSP 29
4.2 Municipal Metered Well ProdUCLION Data ........eeeeiiiceciieiiieeiieccireeeeesssescssssreeeessesssssssesssssessssssssseessessssnnnes 29
4.3 Estimate of AGriCUITUral EXIFACTION ...coviceiieic et st s et e s e e e s e e e e s e e e e e s e e e s e enne e e e e naneeas 29
4.4 Rural Domestic and Small Public Water System EXTraction ... oo e ee e 31
441 VT = Do 4 =21 A (o 0 L= o = Lo 31
4.4.2 Small Public Water System EXIraCtioNS......uuuei et e e s e e e s s e e e e 32
4.5 Total Groundwater EXIraCction SUMMATY .....ueeiiiiiiiiiciiiie et e s s eer e e e s s e s e e e e e s s e snnn e e e s e e s e nnnns 33
SECTION 5: Surface Water USE (8§ 356.2[D][3]) cvveerrrrrererrrirrrrrrsirersssieresssseeessssssessssssnesssssssessssssessssssnessssssnesssssenes 35
L 00 I 1 €0 Yo 11 1 o 35
5.2 TOtal SUIMACE WAt USE..uiiiiiiiieeiieee ettt te e e s e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e sne e e e e e ee e e ansneeeeseee e snnneeeeeeeenansnnnnees 35
SECTION 6: Total Water USe (8§ 356.2[D][4]) cecreeeereerrrrerrrrerraerrrieeersseesaseesassessaseesaseesssesssseessssesssssssssessassessssssssseesn 36

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. v



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 7: Change in Groundwater in Storage (§ 356.2[D][D]) eeeeeererrrrrrrrrrirsrreririeresesiseessssssresessseeessssseesssssees 37
7.1 Annual Changes in Groundwater Elevation (§ 356.2[D][D][A]) ceeerrerrrrrrrrrrerrreirerrriseresssseeessssseeessssseesssns 37
7.2 Annual and Cumulative Change in Groundwater in Storage Calculations (§ 356.2[b][S][B]) .cccveeveeenn. 38

SECTION 8: Progress toward Basin Sustainability (§ 356.2[C]) uuiirvrrrirrrrreririirerisieressssseesssssressssseeessssseesssssnees 39
00 I a0 e Yo 11 o [0 o PR 39
S I [ g o1 (=T g T=T N e= LU [0 T AY o7 1 (0= Yo o PR 39
8.3 Basin-Wide Management ACtIONS @Nd PrOJECES .....ccueiieeriieiieice e 39

8.3.1  Amendmentto the MOA ... e s Error! Bookmark not defined.
8.3.2 Creation of New County Position for Director of Groundwater Sustainability........ccccccevvecieennnnes 39
8.3.3 Expand Basin Well Monitoring NETWOTK ......ouciiieicciiee ettt se s e e e s e e e 40
8.34 Continuing Identification and Pursuit of Funding Opportunities .......ccccvecceericvieesccceeee e 40
S N (== Y 0 1o o o (T[T 03 R 41
8.4.1 City of San Luis Obispo Recycled Water Program .......ccccceeeeiieccciieiieee s ccccceeeee e e s e seeneeeee s ssesnnns 41
8.4.2 Sentinel Peak Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project ... e 41
8.4.3 San Luis Obispo Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project....... v eecceeeeeee e 41
8.5 Summary of Progress toward Meeting Basin Sustainability ........cccueeerrieriiernceeece e 42
8.5.1 R TUT 1] o 1= T o PR 42
8.5.2 INtercoNNECted SUIMACE WaATEN ....coi ettt sen e e s nneeneas 42
8.5.3 LC T TU ] aTo = 1 =T O U= L SR 42
8.5.4  Summary of Changes in Basin CONAItIONS .....ccucciriiiiriieiecee e 43
8.5.5 Summary of Impacts of Projects and Management ACIONS.......cceevvecreereccieen e e e ceee e 43

R LS =T o] = PSR 45

Tables

Table ES- 1. Groundwater Extractions by Water USE SECION ...ttt 2

Table ES- 2. Total Surface Water USE DY SOUICE ....cuiiceieiiieies et seeee s e s se e s en e s se e s s nnn e s nn s 2

Table ES- 3. Total Annual Water Use in the Basin by Source and Water Use SeCtOr......ccccvvvicveeeiirceensccceeen e 3

Table ES- 4. Annual Changes of Groundwater in Storage for Water Years 2017, 2018, and 2019 .................. 3

Table 1. Estimated Agricultural Irrigation Groundwater EXtractions ........cccceeicccieiicciien e 31

Table 2. Estimated Rural Domestic Groundwater EXractions ......coocccieeiiciieniciiies e s s seneee s 32

Table 3. Estimated Small Public Water System Groundwater EXtractions .........cccceeeveececcceeeersceccceeeeeee e e 33

Table 4. Total GroundWater EXIraCiONS ......cuiee ettt s e s e e e e e s e e e e e s e ne e e e e sne e e e e nneeeenanees 33

Table 5. ANNUAI SUIACE WAt USE.......ueiiiceiee et cette st e e st e s st e s e e s s e et e s e e ne e e s s ane e e s e snne s eeannee s e nnnes 35

Table 6. Total Annual Water Use by Source and Water USE SECLON .....uuviieiiieieciirriiee e ccrnrrreees e eeessneeeee e s e eesnnns 36

Table 7. Annual Changes in Groundwater in Storage - San Luis Obispo Basin AqUifer.......ccccccccvvccieereccneenn. 38

Figures

Figure 1. Extent of the San Luis Obispo Basin and Groundwater Sustainability AGENCIES......cccvrverrieereceerrieenn. 8

Figure 2. Cal Poly Annual Precipitation and Cumulative Departure from Mean Annual Precipitation.............. 12

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Vi



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Figure 3. Proposed Groundwater Level Monitoring NEtWOIK.......c.eieerreee e 14
Figure 4. April 2019 GrouNdWater CONTOUIS ......eiiiceiiiiieeiieeeeee e e e s e e s e e s s see e s e e s s eeasse e s e e e e sseesaneessneeesseessnseans 19
Figure 5. April 2020 GrouNdWater CONTOUIS ......ceiiceieeiieeaeeeereeeseeesseee s e e sssee e s seesseeasseeseeeesseesaneessseessseesaneeans 20
Figure 6. October 2020 Groundwater CONTOULIS.......ciiiieiiiieeieeeeteeeseee e e e e sse e e e s s e e e s se e s e e e s sseessneesseessneessnseans 21
Figure 7. April 2021 GroundWater CONTOUIS ....ciiiiiiieicciiieresitee s e sreeesesseeesesse e e sessseeesssnseeeseanseeeseanseeesassseesannsseenan 22
Figure 8. October 2021 Groundwater CONTOUIS.......cii i iiieiereeteeeeee e eeessee e sre e ee s e s se e s e e s s se e s sneessseesneessnseanas 23
Figure 9. Annual Change in Groundwater Elevation, April 2019/2020......c.couccirriirriiereeee e sseeeseeaas 25
Figure 10. Annual Change in Groundwater Elevation, April 2020/2021 .......oorcociiereciieeeeceeee e e eesee e e e sneee e 27
Figure 11. Irrigated AZriCUITUIE 2020 ......ueiiiciiiieecciieeccceee e st e s ee e e e s e e et e s e s se e e s e sase e e s e nseeeseanseeesanseeesanseessannnnenan 30
Figure 12. PUMPING DiSTriDULION ... .eiieiceie ettt s e st e s s ee e s e e ne e s e ane e e s e nne e e s e nse e s s nnneeesennneeesannnenan 34

Appendices

Appendix A. GSP Regulations for Annual Reports

Appendix B. Precipitation Data

Appendix C.  Groundwater Level and Groundwater Storage Monitoring Well Network
Appendix D.  Hydrographs

Appendix E. Aquifer Storage Coefficient Derivation

Appendix F. Director of Groundwater Sustainability Organization Chart

Appendix G.  Public Comments on San Luis Obispo Valley Groundwater Basin Annual Report, Water Years
2020-2021

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. vii



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

This page intentionally left blank.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. viii



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Abbreviations and Acronyms

AF

AFY
AMSL
BMP
CASGEM
CCR
CDEC
CDFFP
CIMIS
coc
CSA
CsD
CWWCP
DWR
ETo
GDE
GMP
gpd/ft
gpm
GSA
GSC
GSP
ILRP
INSAR
IWFM
LID
MOA
NPDES
NWP
PWS
RDI
RMS
RU

S

SEP
SGMA
SLOFCWCD
SWMP

acre-feet

acre-feet per year

above mean sea level

Best Management Practice

California State Groundwater Elevation Monitoring Program
California Code of Regulations

California Data Exchange Center

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
California Irrigation Management Information System
constituent of concern

Community Service Area

Community Services District

Countywide Water Conservation Program

California State Department of Water Resources
reference evapotranspiration

groundwater dependent ecosystem

Groundwater Management Plan

gallons per day per foot

gallons per minute

Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Groundwater Sustainability Commission
Groundwater Sustainability Plan

Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program

interferometric synthetic-aperture radar

Integrated Water Flow Model

low-impact development

memorandum of agreement

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Nacimiento Water Project

public water system

regulated deficit irrigation

representative monitoring site

rural domestic unit

storage coefficient

Supplemental Environmental Project

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

County of San Luis Obispo Flood Control and Water Conservation District
Stormwater Management Plan

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board

SWRP San Luis Obispo County Stormwater Resource Plan
SWP State Water Project

DS total dissolved solids

USGS U.S. Geological Survey

WNND Water Neutral New Development

WY water year

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Annual Report Elements Guide and Checklist

California
Code of
Regulations -

GSP
Regulation
Sections

Article 7

Annual Report Elements

Annual Reports and Periodic Evaluations by the Agency

Location in Annual Report

§ 356.2

Annual Reports

Each Agency shall submit an annual report to the Department by
April 1 of each year following the adoption of the Plan. The
annual report shall include the following components for the
preceding water year:

(a) General information, including an executive summary and a
location map depicting the basin covered by the report.

Executive Summary (§356.2[a])

(b) A detailed description and graphical representation of the
following conditions of the basin managed in the Plan:

Section 2.4 Groundwater Elevation
Monitoring (§356.2[b])

(1) Groundwater elevation data from monitoring wells identified
in the monitoring network shall be analyzed and displayed as
follows:

Section 3 Groundwater Elevations
(§356.2[b][1])

(A) Groundwater elevation contour maps for each principal
aquifer in the basin illustrating, at a minimum, the seasonal high
and seasonal low groundwater conditions.

Section 3.2 Seasonal High and Low
(Spring and Fall) (§356.2[b][1][A])

(B) Hydrographs of groundwater elevations and water year type
using historical data to the greatest extent available, including
from January 1, 2015, to current reporting year.

Section 3.3 Hydrographs
(8§356.2[b][1][B], and Appendix E)

(2) Groundwater extraction for the preceding water year. Data
shall be collected using the best available measurement
methods and shall be presented in a table that summarizes
groundwater extractions by water use sector, and identifies the
method of measurement (direct or estimate) and accuracy of
measurements, and a map that illustrates the general location
and volume of groundwater extractions.

Section 4 Groundwater Extractions
(8356.2[b][2])

(3) Surface water supply used or available for use, for
groundwater recharge or in-lieu use shall be reported based on
quantitative data that describes the annual volume and sources
for the preceding water year.

Section 5 Surface Water Use
(8§356.2[b][3])

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

Xi




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

California
Code of
Regulations -
GSP
Regulation
Sections

Article 7

Annual Report Elements

Annual Reports and Periodic Evaluations by the Agency

Location in Annual Report

§ 356.2

Annual Reports

(4) Total water use shall be collected using the best available
measurement methods and shall be reported in a table that
summarizes total water use by water use sector, water source
type, and identifies the method of measurement (direct or
estimate) and accuracy of measurements. Existing water use
data from the most recent Urban Water Management Plans or
Agricultural Water Management Plans within the basin may be
used, as long as the data are reported by water year.

Section 6 Total Water Use
(8§356.2[b][4])

(5) Change in groundwater in storage shall include the following:

Section 7 Change in Groundwater
in Storage (§356.2[b][5])

(A) Change in groundwater in storage maps for each principal
aquifer in the basin.

Section 7.1 Annual Changes in
Groundwater Elevation
(§356.2[b][5][A])

(B) A graph depicting water year type, groundwater use, the
annual change in groundwater in storage, and the cumulative
change in groundwater in storage for the basin based on
historical data to the greatest extent available, including from
January 1, 2015, to the current reporting year.

Section 7.2 Annual and Cumulative
Change in Groundwater in Storage
Calculations (§356.2[b][5][B])

(c) A description of progress towards implementing the Plan,
including achieving interim milestones, and implementation of
projects or management actions since the previous annual
report.

Section 8 Progress towards Basin
Sustainability (§356.2[c])

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

Xii




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Executive Summary (§ 356.2[a])

Introduction

This First Annual Report for the San Luis Obispo Valley Groundwater Basin (Basin, see Figure 1) has been
prepared in accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP) Regulations. Pursuant to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)
regulations, a GSP Annual Report must be submitted to DWR by April 1 of each year following the adoption of
the GSP.

With the submittal of the adopted San Luis Obispo Valley Basin GSP by the January 31, 2022 deadline, the
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) are required to submit an annual report for the preceding Water
Year (October 1 through September 30) to DWR by April 1, 2022. Because this is the first GSP Annual Report
for the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin, this report documents and updates data from the GSP, covering the
preceding two water years, October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2021. The annual report conveys
monitoring and water use data to the DWR and Basin stakeholders on an annual basis to gauge
performance of the Basin relative to the sustainability goals set forth in the GSP.

Sections of the Annual Report include the following:

Section 1. Introduction — San Luis Obispo Valley Basin First Annual Report (2019-2021): a brief
background of the formation and activities of the San Luis Obispo Basin GSAs and development and
submittal of the GSP.

Section 2. San Luis Obispo Basin Setting and Monitoring Networks: a summary of the Basin setting, Basin
monitoring networks, and ways in which data are used for groundwater management.

Section 3. Groundwater Elevations (§356.2[b][1]): a description of recent monitoring data with groundwater
elevation contour maps for spring and fall monitoring events and hydrographs of Representative Monitoring
Site (RMS) wells.

Section 4. Groundwater Extractions (§356.2[b][2]): compilation of metered and estimated groundwater
extractions by land use sector and location of extractions.

Section 5. Surface Water Use (§356.2[b][3]): a summary of reported surface water use.
Section 6. Total Water Use (§356.2[b][4]): a presentation of total water use by source and sector.

Section 7. Change in Groundwater in Storage (§356.2[b][5]): a description of the methodology and
presentation of changes in groundwater in storage based on fall-to-fall groundwater elevation differences.

Section 8. Progress towards Basin Sustainability (§356.2[c]): a summary of management actions taken
throughout the Basin by GSAs and individual entities towards sustainability of the Basin.

Groundwater Elevations

In general, the groundwater elevations observed in the Basin during water years 2020 and 2021 reflect
differing trends in the San Luis Valley subarea and the Edna Valley subarea. Water levels in the San Luis
Valley subarea, where there is less groundwater production, have remained essentially stable. Water levels
in the Edna Valley subarea, which has more intensive agricultural groundwater production, remain
comparatively lower than the San Luis Valley.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 1



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Groundwater Extractions

Total groundwater extractions in the Basin for water years 2020 and 2021 were 6,210 acre-feet (AF), and
6,280 AF, respectively. Table ES-1 summarizes the groundwater extractions by water use sector for each
water year.

Table ES- 1. Groundwater Extractions by Water Use Sector
Groundwater Extractions by Water Use Sector

Water Year Municipal (AF) PWS and Rural Agriculture  Total (AF)
P Domestic (AF) (AF)
2019 0 1,250 4,960 6,210
2020 0 1,250 5,030 6,280
Method of Metered PWS-metered Soil-Water
Measure: Rural Domestic - Estimated Balance Model
Acfg’gcc)’: high high-medium medium
Notes:

AF = acre-feet
PWS = public water systems

Surface Water Use

The Basin currently benefits from entitlements for importing surface water from the Nacimiento Water
Project (NWP), Whale Rock Reservoir, and Salinas Reservoir to supply municipal groundwater demands in
the City of San Luis Obispo. There is currently no surface water available for agricultural or recharge project
use within the Basin. A summary of total actual surface water use by source is provided in Table ES-2.

Table ES- 2. Total Surface Water Use by Source
Whale Rock Salinas

Water Year Nacimiento Water Reservoir Reservoir Total Surface Water
Project (AF) (AF) (AF) Use (AF)
2020 1,562 1,459 2,154 5,176
2021 2,691 1,491 1,266 5,448
Notes:

AF = acre-feet

Total Water Use

For water years 2020 and 2021, quantification of total water use was completed through reporting of
metered water production data from PWS wells, metered surface water use, and from soil-water balance
models used to estimate agricultural crop and applicable urban turf (golf course and playground fields) water
supply requirements. In addition, rural water use and small commercial public water system use was
estimated. Table ES-3 summarizes the total annual water use in the Basin by source and water use sector.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 2



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Table ES- 3. Total Annual Water Use in the Basin by Source and Water Use Sector

. . PWS and Rural Agriculture
Water Year Municipal (AF) Domestic (AF) (AF) Total (AF)
Source: Groundwater SUriEeE Groundwater Groundwater
Water
2020 0 5,176 1,250 4,960 11,390
2021 0 5,448 1,250 5,030 11,728
Method of PWS-Metered Soil-Water Bal
IV(Iaea:urg: Metered Metered Rural Domes’c?c-e éztimated * aMi:jela anee
ACL(.‘,eL:IreaICC))/f high high low-medium medium
Notes:

AF = acre-feet
PWS = public water systems

Change in Groundwater in Storage

The calculation of change of groundwater in storage in the Basin was derived from comparison of spring
groundwater elevation contour maps from one year to the next as well as taking the difference between
groundwater elevations throughout the Basin as the aquifer becomes saturated (storage gain) or dewatered
(storage loss). For example, the spring 2021 groundwater elevations were subtracted from the spring 2020
groundwater elevations, resulting in a map depicting the changes in groundwater elevations in the Basin
Aquifers.

The groundwater elevation change map for Spring 2020-2021 (see Figure 10), which was a below-average
rainfall year, shows that water levels declined over a portion of the Edna Valley area of the Basin, and
remained relatively stable in the San Luis Valley.

The annual changes of groundwater in storage calculated for water years 2020 and 2021 are presented in
Table ES-4.

Table ES- 4. Annual Changes of Groundwater in Storage for Water Years 2020 and 2021

San Luis Valley Edna Valley Annual Change in
Water Year (AF) (AF) Gg:: ?:;:ea(t:'r: )m
2020 800 670 130
2021 -450 -5080 -5530
TOTAL 340 -6030 -5690
Note:

AF = acre-feet

Progress towards Meeting Basin Sustainability

The San Luis Obispo Basin GSP was submitted to DWR in January 2022. Insufficient time has elapsed since
then for significant progress to be made on any capital-intensive infrastructure projects. Still, progress has
been made on several projects and management actions implemented in the Basin to attain sustainability.
These projects and actions include capital projects as well as non-infrastructure basin-wide policies intended
to reduce or optimize local groundwater use. Some of these projects were described in concept in the GSP;
some of the actions described herein are new initiatives designed to make new water supplies available to

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 3



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

the Basin that may be implemented by project participants to reduce pumping and partially mitigate the
degree to which the management actions would be needed. Some of the ongoing efforts include:

= Development of new San Luis Obispo County Department of Groundwater Sustainability
= Expansion of the Basin Monitoring Network

= City of San Luis Obispo Recycled Water Program Expansion

= Sentinel Peak Recycled Water Discharge Relocation Project

= City Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project Discussions

= Communications Regarding Funding Opportunities

Relative to the most current basin conditions as reported in the GSP, this First Annual Report (WY 2020-
2021) indicates similar groundwater conditions throughout the Basin, with no significant changes in
groundwater elevations in any of the representative monitoring site (RMS) wells, and some decrease in total
groundwater in storage. The lack of a consistent set of wells monitored over this time period results in some
calculations of groundwater elevation trends or change in groundwater in storage that may be artifacts of an
inconsistent data set; this issue will become less pronounced once monitoring of the new monitoring
network documented in this report is established. It is clear that historical groundwater pumping in excess of
the sustainable yield has created challenging conditions for sustainable management. However, actions are
already underway to collect data, improve the monitoring and data-collection networks, and coordinate with
affected agencies and entities throughout the Basin to develop solutions that address the shared mutual
interest in the Basin’s overall sustainability goal.

However, water years 2020 and 2021 were both below-average rainfall years. Most of the 10 RMS wells in
the Basin groundwater monitoring network exhibited declining water levels over this period, at least in part
due to climate factors. None of the wells have groundwater elevations at or below the minimum threshold
established in the GSP. Some of the wells in the San Luis Valley are above the Measurable Objectives for
those wells.

Groundwater in storage in the Basin decreased approximately 5,700 AF in total over the past two water
years based on calculations of changes in groundwater elevations and estimated specific yield in the Basin.
The volume of groundwater extractions in the Basin has remained within the historical range of observed
extractions documented in the GSP. Groundwater in storage has decreased somewhat over the past two
water years. Groundwater pumping continues to exceed the estimated future sustainable yield, and some of
the projects and management actions described in the GSP and in this First Annual Report will be necessary
in order to bring the Basin into sustainability.

At this time, there are no more recent data available since publication of the GSP to assess any changes in
Basin subsidence, the interconnectivity of surface water and groundwater, or potential surface water
depletion. The potential for impacts to these sustainability indicators will be assessed in future annual
reports as monitoring network improvements and associated data are developed.

Additional time will be necessary to assess the effectiveness and quantitative impacts of the projects and
management actions either now underway or in the planning and development stages. The implementation
of an improved monitoring network in the Basin will provide the data consistency necessary to provide a
more robust evaluation of future conditions. However, all water user groups and stakeholders in the Basin
are actively engaged in the water resources planning process, and it is clear that the actions in place and as
described in this First Annual Report are a good start towards reaching the sustainability goals laid out in the
GSP. It is too soon to judge the observed changes in basin conditions against the interim goals outlined in

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 4



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

the GSP, but the anticipated effects of the projects and management actions now underway are expected to
significantly affect the ability of the Basin to reach the necessary sustainability goals.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

This page intentionally left blank.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 1.: Introduction — San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual
Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

The First Annual Report for the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin (Basin) has been prepared for the San Luis
Obispo Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Committee (GSC) and the Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies (GSAs) in accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) Regulations (§ 356.2. Annual Reports) (see Appendix A, GSP
Regulations for Annual Reports). Pursuant to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)
regulations, a GSP Annual Report must be submitted to DWR by April 1 of each year following the adoption of
the GSP. With adoption and submittal of the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin GSP by January 31, 2022, the
GSAs are required to submit an annual report for the preceding water year (October 1 through September
30) to DWR by April 1, 2020. Because this is the first GSP Annual Report for the San Luis Obispo Valley
Basin, this report documents and updates data from October 1, 2019 through October 31, 2021.1

1.1 Setting and Background

The San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (WSC, 2021) was prepared by Water
Systems Consulting (WSC), GSI Water Solutions (GSl), Cleath-Harris Geologists (CHG), Stillwater Sciences,
and GEI Consultants on behalf of and in cooperation with the GSC and the Basin GSAs. The GSP, and this
Annual Report, covers the entire San Luis Obispo Basin (Figure 1). The Basin lies in the central portion of
San Luis Obispo County. The majority of the Basin comprises gentle alluvial flatlands and hills that drain San
Luis Creek and Pismo Creek watersheds, ranging in elevation from approximately 100 feet (ft) above mean
sea level (AMSL) where San Luis Obispo Creek leaves the Basin to about 450 feet AMSL in the higher parts
of the Edna Valley. Communities in the Basin are the City of San Luis Obispo and the communities of Edna,
Edna Ranch and Varian Ranch. Highway 101 is the most significant north-south highway through the Basin,
with State Route 227 running approximately parallel to the axis of the Basin from the City to Edna Valley.

1 The required timeframe of the annual reports, pursuant to the SGMA regulations, is by water year, which is October 1
through September 30 of any water year. However, because the County of San Luis Obispo Groundwater Level Monitoring
Program measures water levels in October, the October 2019 measurements, for instance, are utilized to reflect conditions at
the end of water year 2019.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 7



FIGURE 1

;'"‘l: REY
4 l e N
I j Extent of the San Luis Obispo
A i Basin and Groundwater
- _| ) Sustainability Agencies
!_ _________ San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies
City of San Luis Obispo

>

i %’E s | San Luis Obispo County
All Other Features
m Bulletin 118 Boundary
=—=== Bedrock Divide
['_'__-i City Boundary
"] sLoAirport
/\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse
’ Waterbody

CrA‘E\?
\
<

o

.\4,%&
;9',
(o)
]
2
3
I
I? PROJECT
i LOCATION ]
N
0 0.5 1
[T TR N
Miles
PACIFIC OCEAN Date: February 4, 2022
0 Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figurel_Basin_Extent.mxd, npalmer



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

The GSP was jointly developed by two GSAs:
= City of San Luis Obispo GSA
= County of San Luis Obispo GSA

The GSAs overlying the Basin and small water purveyors in the Basin (Edna Valley Mutual Water Company,
Golden State Water Company, and Varian Ranch Mutual Water Company) entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) effective as of January 25, 2018. The purpose of the MOA was to establish a Basin
Groundwater Sustainability Committee (GSC) to act as an advisory body to the GSAs and to develop a single
GSP for the entire Basin to be considered for adoption by each GSA and subsequently submitted to DWR for
approval. Under the framework of the original MOA, the GSAs and GSC engaged the public and coordinated
to jointly develop the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin GSP. At its October 20, 2021 meeting, in accordance with
the MOA, the GSC voted unanimously to recommend that the GSAs adopt the GSP and submit it to DWR by
the SGMA deadline of January 31, 2022. Subsequent actions by each GSA resulted in unanimous approval
of the GSP and a joint submittal of the GSP to DWR.

Each of the GSAs and water purveyors appointed a representative to the GSC to coordinate activities among
the parties during the development of the GSP, and the development and submittal of this Annual Report.
The GSAs also agreed to designate the County of San Luis Obispo Groundwater Sustainability Director as the
Plan Manager with the authority to submit the GSP and the Annual Report and serve as the point of
contact with DWR.

1.2 Organization of This Report

The required contents of an Annual Report are provided in the GSP Regulations (§ 356.2), included as
Appendix A. Organization of the report is meant to follow the regulations where possible to assist in the
review of the document. The sections are briefly described as follows:

Section 1. Introduction — San Luis Obispo Valley Basin First Annual Report (WYs 2021-2022): a brief
background of the formation and activities of the San Luis Obispo Valley Basin GSAs and development and
submittal of the GSP.

Section 2. San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Setting and Monitoring Networks: a summary of the Basin setting,
Basin monitoring networks, and the ways in which data are used for groundwater management.

Section 3. Groundwater Elevations (§356.2[b][1]): a description of recent monitoring data with groundwater
elevation contours for spring and fall monitoring events and representative hydrographs.

Section 4. Groundwater Extractions (§356.2[b][2]): compilation of metered and estimated groundwater
extractions by land use sector and location of extractions.

Section 5. Surface Water Use (§356.2[b][3]): a summary of reported surface water use.
Section 6. Total Water Use (§356.2[b][4]): a presentation of total water use by source and sector.

Section 7. Change in Groundwater in Storage (§356.2[b][5]): a description of the methodology and
presentation of changes in groundwater in storage based on fall to fall groundwater elevation differences.

Section 8. Progress towards Basin Sustainability (§356.2[c]): a summary of management actions taken
throughout the Basin by GSAs and individual entities towards sustainability of the Basin.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 9



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 2: San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Setting and Monitoring
Networks

2.1 Introduction

This section provides a brief description of the basin setting and the groundwater management monitoring
programs described in the GSP, as well as any notable events affecting monitoring activities or the quality of
monitoring results in the reported 2020-2021 water years. Much of the information reported on in this
Annual Report was sourced from the GSP prepared by WSC et al., Inc.

2.2 Basin Setting

The Basin is oriented in a northwest-southeast direction and is composed of unconsolidated or loosely
consolidated sedimentary materials deposited atop relatively impermeable bedrock (Figure 1). It is
approximately 14 miles long and 1.5 miles wide. It covers a surface area of about 12,700 acres (19.9
square miles). The Basin is bounded on the northeast by the bedrock formations of the Santa Lucia Range,
and on the southwest by the formations of the San Luis Range and the Edna and Los Osos fault systems.
The bottom of the Basin is defined by the contact of permeable sediments with the impermeable bedrock
Miocene-aged and Franciscan Assemblage rocks (DWR 2003). Land surface elevation ranges from less than
100 feet above mean sea level (ft AMSL) to over 450 ft AMSL in the higher parts of the Edna Valley. The
Basin is usually identified as having two distinctly different areas: The San Luis Valley subarea and the Edna
Valley subarea. The unofficial boundary between these two subareas is a subsurface bedrock divide located
just southwest of the airport, approximately coincident with Hidden Springs Road (Figure 1).

The San Luis Valley subarea comprises approximately the northwestern half of the Basin. It is the area of the
Basin drained by San Luis Obispo Creek and its tributaries (Prefumo Creek and Stenner Creek west of
Highway 101, Davenport Creek and smaller tributaries east of Highway 101). Surface drainage in the San
Luis Valley subarea drains out of the Basin via San Luis Obispo Creek, flowing to the south along
approximately along the alignment of Highway 101 toward the coast in the Avila Beach area. The San Luis
Valley subarea includes the parts of the City and California Polytechnic University (Cal Poly) jurisdictional
boundaries, which intersect with the Basin boundary, while the remainder of the Basin is unincorporated
land. Land use in the City is primarily municipal, residential, and commercial. The area in the northwest part
of the Basin, along Los Osos Valley Road, has significant areas of groundwater-dependent irrigated
agriculture, primarily row crops.

The Edna Valley subarea comprises approximately the southeastern half of the basin. The primary creeks
that drain this subarea are the east and west branches of Corral de Piedras Creek, which join to form Pismo
Creek just south of the Basin boundary, draining south out of the Edna Valley into Price Canyon. Smaller
tributaries, including Canada de Verde, drain south from the Edna Valley subarea in the extreme
southeastern part of Edna Valley, ultimately joining Pismo Creek (Figure 1). The Edna Valley subarea
includes unincorporated lands, including lands associated with various private water purveyors’ service
areas. The primary land use in the Edna Valley subarea is agriculture. Over the past two decades, wine
grapes have become the most significant crop type in the Edna Valley.

There are three recognized water-bearing geologic formations that serve as aquifers: the Recent Alluvium,
the Paso Robles Formation, and the Squire member of the Pismo Formation. These three formations are
comprised of unconsolidated sediments whose productive strata are laterally discontinuous; no extensive
confining layer separates one formation from the others throughout the Basin. In the San Luis Valley
subarea, the Alluvium is not confined to active stream corridors, but is present at the surface throughout

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 10



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

that entire part of the Basin. In the Edna Valley subarea, Alluvium is only present at the surface along active
stream channels; the Paso Robles Formation is exposed at the surface in most of the Edna Valley subarea,
and the Squire member is present at depth below the Paso Robles Formation. Groundwater production in
the Basin has historically been seen as utilization of a single resource. Wells are typically screened across all
productive strata regardless of the source geologic formation. In the San Luis Valley subarea, most wells are
screened in both the Alluvium and the Paso Robles Formation. In the Edna Valley subarea, wells are typically
screened across both the Paso Robles Formation and the Squire member of the Pismo Formation.

2.3 Precipitation and Climatic Periods

Annual precipitation recorded at the Cal Poly weather station is presented by water year in Figure 2. The
long-term average annual precipitation for the period from 1870 through 2021 is 21.7 inches per water
year, as recorded at the Cal Poly weather station. Climatic periods in the Basin have been determined based
on published DWR analysis of historical precipitation data and are displayed for years since 1960 on Figure
2. These climatic periods are categorized according to the following designations: wet, dry, above normal,
below normal, and critical. Historical precipitation records are provided in Appendix B.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 11



55
50
45
40
35
30
25
20

Annual Precipitation, inches

15
10

60

40

20

Cumulative Departure from
Mean Precipitation, Inches
o

Weather Station: Cal Poly
1871 - 2021 Mean Annual Precipitation: 21.84 inches

1871
1876
1881

1886

1891

1896

1901

1906

1911

1916

1921

1926

1931

(¥ - (¥ -
n < < In
(o)} [e)} (o)} (o)}
i i i i
Hydrologic Year

1956

1961

1966

1971

1976

1981

1986

1991

1996

2001

2006

2011

2016

2021

FIGURE 2

Cal Poly
Annual Precipitation and
Cumulative Departure from
Mean Annual Precipitation

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

= Cumulative Departure
Water Year Type

Wet

Above Normal

Below Normal

Dry

Critical

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

2.4 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (§ 356.2[b])

This section provides a brief description of the groundwater management monitoring programs currently in
place and any notable events affecting monitoring activities or the quality of monitoring results.

2.4.1 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring Locations

The GSP provided a summary of existing groundwater monitoring efforts currently promulgated under
various existing local, state, and federal programs. SGMA requires that monitoring networks be developed to
provide sufficient data quality, frequency, and spatial distribution to characterize groundwater and surface
water in the Basin, and to evaluate changing aquifer conditions in response to GSP implementation. The
monitoring network developed in the GSP is intended to support efforts to accomplish the following:

= Monitor changes in groundwater conditions and demonstrate progress toward achieving measurable
objectives and minimum thresholds documented in the GSP

= Quantify annual changes in water use
= Monitor impacts to the beneficial uses and users of groundwater

Monitoring networks are developed for each of the five sustainability indicators relevant to the San Luis
Obispo Basin:

= Chronic lowering of groundwater levels

= Reduction of groundwater in storage

= Degraded water quality

= Land subsidence

= Depletion of interconnected surface water

Monitoring for the first two sustainability indicators (chronic lowering of water levels and reduction of
groundwater in storage) is implemented using the same representative monitoring sites (RMS) identified in
the GSP. The GSP identifies an existing network of 10 RMS wells for monitoring of water levels and storage
change. Of these 10 wells, six are located in the Edna Valley subarea and four are located in the San Luis
Valley subarea (Figure 3). These RMS have been monitored biannually, in April and October, for various
periods of record. The RMSs are displayed as squares in Figure 3, and a summary of information for each of
the wells is included in Appendix C.

The County Flood Control District actively monitors 12 wells within the Basin, displayed as brown circles on
Figure 3. The City has 9 wells (displayed as yellow circles on Figure 3) that were monitored prior to the year
2000, but monitoring stopped at that time, and has been re-started recently. The GSP team made a
significant effort to reach out to private well owners in the Basin and identified an additional 20 wells to
include in the Basin monitoring network, which will significantly expand basin characterization to fill in
identified data gaps. These wells will be included in future monitoring efforts during the GSP implementation
period, but water level monitoring at the new wells has not started yet.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 13



O sLv-03 SLv-23
O

’

.

PACIFIC OCEAN

p (% '\~
'h-“ c N,
/ S=l__ .~ SLV-06
,'/ N Q
/
<

NAYG|UNJAY
FAKE

6,

Srézn—\;xu-i:sg.o

L]

<

[ SLV-%?

1
] A A 1
_'SLV 13 SLV-14; /?P\l\‘l\

>

SRMRD

TAN
0/ K-F

\
.
-

;

N=a

SLV-18

EV-18

FIGURE 3

Proposed Groundwater Level

Monitoring Network
San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
Monitoring Well

©)
(©)
(@)

O

GSP Approved
City
County

Representative Monitoring Well

All Other Features

m Bulletin 118 Boundary
—==-= Bedrock Divide

['_'-_-i City Boundary

] sLOAirport

/\/ Major Road

“\_  Watercourse

25 Waterbody

Date: February 4, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbho\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure3_Proposed_GW_Network.mxd, npalmer




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

2.4.2 Monitoring Data Gaps

The GSP originally noted numerous data gaps in the Basin monitoring network. Public outreach during the
GSP development helped address many of these data gaps. However, it should be noted that ongoing efforts
are continuing during the implementation phase of the GSP to identify existing wells that can be added to
the network, or to construct new wells for the network. These wells are displayed in Figure 3, and a summary
of available well information is included in Appendix C.

2.5 Additional Monitoring

Evaluation of the water quality sustainability indicator is achieved through monitoring of an existing network
of public water supply (PWS) wells in the Basin. Constituents of concern (COCs) identified in the GSP that
have the potential to impact suitability of water for public supply or agricultural use include total dissolved
solids (TDS), nitrate, and arsenic.

COCs for drinking water are monitored at public water supply wells (PWS). There are currently 45 PWSs in
the Basin. A subset of PWS wells constitute part of the monitoring network for water quality in the Basin. In
addition, Agricultural Order 4.0 of the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program is currently in draft form and under
review. Selection of specific wells regulated under that program would be recommended when the program
is implemented and monitoring data is available for review.

Subsidence was documented in the 1990s along the Los Osos Valley Road corridor. Land subsidence in the
Basin is now monitored using interferometric synthetic-aperture radar (InSAR) data collected using
microwave satellite imagery provided by DWR. Available data to date indicate no significant subsidence in
the Basin that impacts infrastructure. The GSAs will annually assess subsidence using the InSAR data
provided by DWR.

Three RMS wells were identified to monitor conditions associated with groundwater/surface water
interaction. Additional monitoring network sites to assess the sustainability indicator of groundwater/surface
water interconnection is a current data gap that will be addressed during GSP implementation.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 15



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 3: Groundwater Elevations (§ 356.2[b][1])

3.1 Introduction

This section provides a detailed report on groundwater elevations in the Basin since spring of 2019, which
marked the end of the analyses completed for the GSP. In the future, annual reports will present
groundwater elevation updates for the previous water year. However, because of the gap between the end of
the GSP analysis and this First Annual Report, five groundwater elevation maps are presented—for spring
2019 (from the GSP), spring 2020, fall 2020, spring 2021, and fall 2021.

These maps present the most up-to-date seasonal conditions in the Basin. The data presented characterize
conditions for the highest encountered water in the Basin Aquifer, regardless of screened interval. As
discussed in the Basin Setting section, the aquifer in the Basin is characterized and developed as a single
hydrogeologic unit.

Monitoring data is reviewed for quality and an appropriate time frame is chosen to provide the highest
consistency in the wells used for each reporting period. Data quality is often difficult to ascertain when
measurements are taken by other agencies or private well owners. Well construction information, including
surveyed reference elevations, may be incomplete or unavailable at this time. This means that a careful
review of the data is required prior to uploading to DWR’s new Monitoring Network Module (replacing the
current CASGEM program) to verify whether measurements are trending consistent with trends of previous
years and with the current year’s hydrology and level of extractions.

3.1.1 Principal Aquifers

As discussed in Section 2, the three geologic formations in the Basin effectively function as a single Basin
aquifer. Recent Alluvium thickness ranges from a few feet to over 50 feet. The Paso Robles Formation
Aquifer is up to two hundred feet thick, and the Squire member of the Pismo formation is observed to be up
to 400 feet thick in some boring logs.

3.2 Seasonal High and Low (Spring and Fall) (§ 356.2[b][1][A])

The assessment of groundwater elevation conditions in the Basin as described in the GSP is largely based
on data from the County of San Luis Obispo Flood Control and Water Conservation District (SLOFCWCD)
groundwater monitoring program. Groundwater levels are measured by the SLOFCWCD through a network of
public and private wells in the Basin. The County has a legacy confidentiality agreement with these well
owners that precludes the presentation of well locations or well data in public documents. Most well owners
in the County network signed an updated confidentiality agreement that allows presentation of these data
without revealing owner information; a few well owners did not sign this updated agreement; data from
these wells was used in development of groundwater elevation contours, but not displayed in the figures in
this report. Many wells that were monitored by the City prior to 2000 have only begun to be monitored again
recently. To represent conditions as extensively as possible, this annual report uses as many wells as have
data for each groundwater elevation map. This leads to differing data sets for each water level map. In
future years, when the new monitoring network is in place and the data set is more consistent, changes in
water levels will be more robustly characterized. Groundwater level data from approximately 21 wells are
used to create the most recent set of groundwater elevation contour maps. As implementation of the GSP
progresses, it is anticipated that additional wells will be added to the data set.

In accordance with the SGMA regulations, the following information is presented based on available data:

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 16



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

= Groundwater elevation contour maps for spring and fall groundwater conditions for the previous two
water years. Groundwater elevation contour maps are presented spring 2020, fall 2020, spring 2021,
and fall 2021.

= A map depicting the change in groundwater elevation for the preceding water year. Because the most
recent groundwater elevation map in the GSP was for spring 2019, change in groundwater elevation
maps are shown here for the periods spring 2019 to spring 2020, and spring 2020 to spring 2021

= Hydrographs for RMS wells (Appendix D).

3.2.1 Basin Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours

As discussed previously, sediments that comprise all three geologic formations in the Basin are
interfingered, and no laterally extensive confining layer is observed between any of the formations. There is
no significant hydraulic separation between productive sediments of the different formations. The Basin
aquifer is utilized as a single resource; most wells screen at least two of the formations throughout the
Basin. Therefore, groundwater elevation data for the first encountered groundwater in the Basin Aquifer are
contoured as a single hydrogeologic unit.

Figures 4 through 8 present groundwater elevation contours for spring 2019, and spring and fall of water
years 2020 and 2021. Groundwater elevations range from approximately 290-300 ft AMSL in the Edna
Valley subarea where West Corral de Piedras Creek enters the Basin to less than 110 ft AMSL near the area
where San Luis Obispo Creek leaves the Basin. Groundwater flow directions remain consistent between the
maps, although water levels change. Regional flow directions are southward from Cal Poly and downtown
San Luis Obispo roughly parallel to the course of the creek, southeastward along Los Osos Valley Road
toward San Luis Obispo Creek, and west to southwest toward the creek in the vicinity of Tank Farm Road. In
Edna Valley, regional flow is northwestward toward San Luis Obispo Valley, and local flow regimes are
southward toward the locations where Corral de Piedras Creeks and Canada de Verde Creek exit the Basin,
and toward apparent pumping centers in the southern edge of the Valley.

Groundwater elevation data for spring 2020 through fall 2021 for the Basin were contoured to assess
spatial variations, yearly fluctuations, trends in groundwater conditions, groundwater flow directions, and
horizontal groundwater gradients. Contour maps were prepared for the seasonal spring and fall groundwater
levels, which are intended to represent approximations of seasonal high and low water levels at the
beginning and end of the local irrigation seasons. In general, the spring groundwater data are for April and
the fall groundwater data are for October.

Figure 4 presents groundwater elevation contours for Spring 2019. This map was generated during the
development of the GSP: (It was determined subsequent to publication that the County had been monitoring
the wrong well for one of their monitoring points, resulting in an incorrect interpretation in a portion of Edna
Valley; this error was corrected for this map.) This map served as the starting condition for calculations of
change in ground water levels in the subsequent water year.

Figure 5 presents groundwater elevation contours for Spring 2020. Groundwater elevations are
approximately 290 ft AMSL in Edna Valley in the vicinity of EV-01, where East and West Corral de Piedras
Creeks enter the Basin, and the groundwater flow direction in this vicinity is both west/northwest toward San
Luis Valley and southward toward pumping centers and the location where Corral de Piedras Creeks exit the
Basin. A regional flow direction is apparent is from the southeast to northwest, from the Edna Valley toward
the San Luis Valley portion of the Basin. The lowest groundwater elevations are observed where San Luis
Obispo Creek leaves the Basin, with elevations lower than 110 ft AMSL.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 17



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Figure 6 presents groundwater elevation contours for Fall 2020. Groundwater elevations are still
approximately 290 ft AMSL in the Edna Valley where East and West Corral de Piedras Creeks enter the
Basin, and the groundwater flow directions in this vicinity are unchanged from the spring conditions. Most
wells in the Edna Valley are about 10 to 15 feet lower than the spring levels, which is consistent with
expected seasonal fluctuations. Groundwater elevations in the SLO Valley do not show any significant
declines since the previous spring. Groundwater flow direction patterns in the SLO Valley part of the Basin
are unchanged. The lowest groundwater elevations are observed where San Luis Obispo Creek leaves the
Basin, with elevations just over 110 ft AMSL.

Figure 7 presents groundwater elevation contours for Spring 2021. Groundwater elevations in the vicinity of
EV-01 are higher than previously observed, with elevations exceeding 300 feet. Elevations in southeastern
Edna Valley are about 5-15 feet higher than the previous fall, consistent with expected seasonal patterns.
The groundwater flow directions throughout the Basin are unchanged from the previous two water level
maps. The lowest groundwater elevations are observed where San Luis Obispo Creek leaves the Basin, with
elevations lower than 110 ft AMSL.

Figure 8 presents groundwater elevation contours for Fall 2021. Groundwater elevations again exceed 300
ft AMSL near EV-01 and EV-02. Groundwater elevations throughout the Edna Valley are lower than the
previous spring, consistent with expected seasonal trends. The lowest groundwater elevations are observed
where San Luis Obispo Creek leaves the Basin, with elevations lower than 110 ft AMSL.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 18



FIGURE 4

April 2019
Groundwater Contours

San Luis Obispo, California

———————-——n

160"
A AO"

e

LEGEND

O  well

Groundwater Contour, Spring 2020
N~ (dashed where inferred)

= Groundwater Flow Direction
All Other Features
m Bulletin 118 Boundary

—==-= Bedrock Divide

>

—’/

['_'-_-i City Boundary
__________ "] sLO Airport

\ /\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse
’ Waterbody

s,
Ky
%9

a.n—\;wU.i.sio

S

ismo

)

Date: February 11, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

PACIFIC OCEAN

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure4_Contours_Apr2019.mxd, npalmer



FIGURE 5

i

April 2020
Groundwater Contours

San Luis Obispo, California

———————-——n

= -160-

LEGEND
O  well

Groundwater Contour, Spring 2020
N\~ (dashed where inferred)

= Groundwater Flow Direction
All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary
=—=== Bedrock Divide

>

SLV-04
197.5'

['_'-_-i City Boundary
__________ ] sLoAirport
\ /\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse

’ Waterbody

L

R
Ky

6,

a.n—\;wU.i.sio

S

Date: February 11, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

PACIFIC OCEAN

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure5_Contours_Apr2020.mxd, npalmer



FIGURE 6

RS
4 !
! - October 2020
e Groundwater Contours
San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
O  well

Groundwater Contour, Fall 2020
N~ (dashed where inferred)

= Groundwater Flow Direction
All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary
=—=== Bedrock Divide

|'_'_'--' City Boundary
] sLoAirport
/\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse

’ Waterbody

s,
Ky
%9

a.n—\;wU.i.sio

S

e . o ?
. -
: N
y 0 0.5 1
| L | I | L
Miles
PACIFIC OCEAN Date: February 11, 2022
- Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure6_Contours_0Oct2020.mxd, npalmer




FIGURE 7

PACIFIC OCEAN

———————-——n

i

3.

O,.é

Sféfn—\;'Uli'Sa-,

>

/  116.86'
SLv-11
112.58/ A )'s1:v/10
“ 106.94'

SL‘V—lZ/ S\LV'16’ =—TANK:FARM RD

168.2/8'
SLV-15
07.93;

B
2

April 2021
Groundwater Contours

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
O  well

Groundwater Contour, Spring 2021
N~ (dashed where inferred)

= Groundwater Flow Direction
All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary
=—=== Bedrock Divide

~

[__J City Boundary
] sLoAirport
/\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse
’ Waterbody

Date: February 11, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure7_Contours_Apr2021.mxd, npalmer




FIGURE 8

i

=--

——m————-——n
P

1

<]

>

-

PACIFIC OCEAN

October 2021
Groundwater Contours

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

O  well

Groundwater Contour, Fall 2021
N~ (dashed where inferred)

= Groundwater Flow Direction
All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary
=—=== Bedrock Divide

|'_'_'--' City Boundary
] sLoAirport
/\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse

’ Waterbody

Date: February 11, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure8_Contours_Oct2021.mxd, npalmer




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Figure 9 presents the calculated change in water level between Spring 2019 and Spring 2020 based on the
groundwater elevations presented in Figures 4 and 6. In San Luis Valley, the majority of the area shows
changes ranging from -10 feet to +10 feet. This indicates that the San Luis Creek subarea of the Basin is in
relative equilibrium, with no significant changes in groundwater elevations evident during this time period. (It
should be noted that much of the area northwest of Laguna Lake and north of the confluence of Stenner
Creek and San Luis Obispo Creek had no water level data for this time period, and contours were estimated
based on historical patterns; implementation of the improved monitoring network will address this data gap).
In the Edna Valley subarea, areas of groundwater decline over this time period are evident near EV-01 and
EV-11.

It is important to note, as described previously, that there was not a uniform data set of wells monitored for
water levels during the monitoring events. To some extent, this can lead to patterns of water level changes
that are artifacts of the data variability and may not reflect true changes in water levels. These occurrences
will be minimized once a uniform set of wells is used for calculation in future annual reports and GSP
revisions.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 24



RO ‘.

——m————-——n
P

SLV-03

>

LNA\GlUNJAY
FAKE

SLV-06

é\‘s‘
%

a.n—\;-u.i.s*o
R

S

PACIFIC OCEAN

FIGURE 9

Annual Change in Groundwater
Elevation, April 2019/2020

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
O  Monitoring Well

Change in Groundwater Elevation
(feet NAVD88)

[ =30
>20- 30
>10- 20
>0-10
0

-10-0
-20 - -10
-30 - -20

BRO000OE

All Other Features

m Bulletin 118 Boundary
—==-= Bedrock Divide

['_'-_-i City Boundary

] sLOAirport

/\/ Major Road

“\_  Watercourse

25 Waterbody

Date: February 8, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisho\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure9_Annual_GW_Change_2019-2020.mxd, npalmer




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Figure 10 presents the calculated change in water level between Spring 2020 and Spring 2021 based on
the groundwater elevations presented in Figures 6 and 8. Most of the San Luis Valley subarea again displays
changes in groundwater elevation between -10 and +10, as in the previous year, indicating relative
equilibrium in the groundwater conditions in this area. An exception is the area indicated in red around well
SLV-06. As discussed previously, this appears to be an artifact of a non-uniform data set. Well SLV-06 had
no measured data in Spring 2020, so contours were estimated. IN Spring 2021, a measured water level was
used. Therefore, this apparent water level decline may not reflect true groundwater conditions. Now that
SLV-06 is being monitored regularly, future annual reports will reflect a more robust data set.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 26



RO ‘.

——m————-——n
P

SLV-03

>

LNA\GlUNJAY
FAKE

SLV-06

é\‘s‘
%

a.n—\;-u.i.s*o
R

S

PACIFIC OCEAN

FIGURE 10

Annual Change in Groundwater
Elevation, April 2020/2021

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND
O  Monitoring Well

Change in Groundwater Elevation
(feet NAVD88)

[ =30
>20- 30
>10- 20
>0-10
0

-10-0
-20 - -10
-30 - -20

BRO000OE

All Other Features

m Bulletin 118 Boundary
—==-= Bedrock Divide

['_'-_-i City Boundary

] sLOAirport

/\/ Major Road

“\_  Watercourse

25 Waterbody

Date: February 8, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure10_Annual_GW_Change_2020-2021.mxd, npalmer




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

In general, the groundwater elevations observed in the Basin during water years 2020 and 2021 reflect
largely static conditions in the San Luis Valley subarea, and water level declines in the Edna Valley subarea.
Water years 2020 and 2021 were both below-average precipitation years. Positive and negative changes in
groundwater elevations from year to year are observed in different parts of the Basin, as has been observed
historically. Seasonal trends of slightly higher spring groundwater elevations compared with fall levels
continued in each of the water years.

3.3 Hydrographs (§ 356.2[b][1][B])

Groundwater elevation hydrographs are used to evaluate changes in groundwater elevations over time.
Changes in groundwater elevation at a given point in the Basin can result from many factors, with all or
some occurring at any given time. Some of these factors include changing hydrologic trends, seasonal
variations in precipitation, varying Basin extractions, changing inflows and outflows along boundaries,
availability of recharge from surface water sources, and influence from localized pumping conditions.
Climatic variation can be one of the most significant factors affecting groundwater elevations over time. For
this reason, the hydrographs also display periods of climatic variation with designation of historical water
year types as defined by DWR.

3.3.1 Hydrographs

Groundwater elevation hydrographs and associated location maps for the 10 RMS wells in the Basin
monitoring network are presented in Appendix D. These hydrographs also include graphical display of well
construction details (if known), reference point elevation, measurable objectives and minimum thresholds
for each well that were developed during the preparation of the GSP. Many of the hydrographs illustrate a
condition of declining water levels since the late 1990s, although some indicate relative water level stability
over the same period. Most wells display water levels that decline with the lower-than-average precipitation
measured over the past two water years.

As described in the GSP, various criteria were used to define the measurable objectives and minimum
thresholds for the RMS wells. Going forward from 2021, the average of the spring and fall measurements in
two consecutive water years will be the benchmark against which trends will be assessed.

Of the 10 RMS hydrographs presented in Appendix D, none exhibit groundwater elevations at or below the
minimum threshold. Although the groundwater elevations in some of the RMS wells continue to trend
downward, some of the RMS wells exhibit stable groundwater elevations, despite two consecutive years of
below average rainfall. Future annual reports will document transient groundwater elevations with time at
each of the RMS wells, and progress toward sustainability will be evaluated based on these criteria.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 28



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 4: Groundwater Extractions (§ 356.2[b][2])

4.1 Introduction

This section presents the metered and estimated groundwater extractions from the Basin for the 2020 and
2021 water years. The types of groundwater extraction described in this section include municipal,
agricultural (Table 1), rural domestic (Table 2), and small public water systems (Table 3). Each following
subsection includes a description of the method of measurement and a qualitative level of accuracy for each
estimate. The level of accuracy is rated on a qualitative scale of low, medium, and high. The annual
groundwater extraction volumes for all water use sectors are shown in Table 4.

4.2 Municipal Metered Well Production Data

Municipal groundwater extractions are mandated by regulation to be metered data. The City of San Luis
Obispo currently uses no groundwater as part of their water supply. The City used groundwater during the
1980s and 1990s, and still owns several wells that could be activated in the future. The City retains the right
to re-start production of groundwater as part of their water supply portfolio as part of carefully planned
operations of their water resources planning activities.

4.3 Estimate of Agricultural Extraction

Agricultural water use constituted 80 percent of the total anthropogenic groundwater use in the Basin in
WYs 2020-2021. To estimate agricultural water demand, land use data along with climate and soil data
were analyzed and processed using the soil-water balance model that was developed for the GSP water
budget (GSP Section 6). Annual land use spatial data sets from San Luis Obispo County were used to
determine the appropriate crop categories, distribution, and acreages, which were then reviewed using
aerial imagery. Land use types were grouped within five crop categories, including citrus, deciduous, pasture,
vegetable, and vineyard, each with a respective set of crop water demand coefficients and water system
efficiencies, as described in the GSP water budget.

Figure 11 shows the distribution of agricultural acreage irrigated by wells extracting water from the Basin for
WY 2020. Agricultural fields are shown on parcels overlying the basin, or on which the water extracted for
irrigation is interpreted to come from wells in the Basin. Figure 11 indicates significant areas dedicated to
citrus (primarily lemons) in the Edna Valley. As new plantings, most of this agricultural area currently has a
consumptive water use estimate comparable to vineyard. However, as the trees mature, they will require
more applied irrigation water in the future than they currently need.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 29



PACIFIC OCEAN

It |
et

>

LNA\GlUNJAY

LFAKE

1S \Enow

CrgE\f
\
<

@
>
// N
R/ <Y
o ot
N C
&Y/ C .

o)

]

[
ol

g
3

>
1

5

l:s

q

()

[ 4
7

FIGURE 11

Irrigated Agriculture 2020
San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

2020 Irrigated Agriculture by Crop Type
Citrus

- Deciduous
Pasture
Vegetable

- Vineyard

All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary

=—=== Bedrock Divide

~—=

[__J City Boundary
"] SLO Airport
/\/ Major Road
“\_  Watercourse
’ Waterbody

Date: February 4, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisho\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figure12_lIrrigated_Ag_2020.mxd, npalmer




FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Climate data inputs include precipitation and evapotranspiration (ETo) data from the Cal Poly Weather
Station (CIMIS station 52). Crop coefficients were developed using the DWR Consumptive Use Program Plus
(CUP+; DWR, 2015), which uses climate data and soil moisture parameters to develop estimated applied
water demand for each crop type.

The soil-water balance model was utilized to estimate agricultural water demands through WY 2019 during
completion of the GSP. Agricultural water demand for this First Annual Report was estimated for WYs 2020
and 2021 using the soil-water balance model. The resulting estimated groundwater extractions for
agricultural demands are summarized in Table 1. The accuracy level rating of these estimated volumes is
low-medium.

Table 1. Estimated Agricultural Irrigation Groundwater Extractions

San Luis Valley Edna Valley Agricultural
(AF) (AF) Total (AF)

Water Year

2017 1,550 3,640 5,190
2018 1,190 3,550 4,740
2019 1,030 3,350 4,380
2020 1,200 3,760 4,960
2021 960 4,070 5,030

Note: AF = acre-feet

Water extractions for agriculture increased significantly between WY 2019 and 2020 due to a combination
of lower rainfall in WY 2020 and to the transition of over 400 acres from vineyard to citrus in the Edna Valley
subarea. In WY 2021, water extractions in the San Luis Valley subarea decreased compared to WY 2020
due to the removal of close to 100 acres of irrigated vegetable acreage in the subarea. In the Edna Valley
subarea, applied irrigation increased between WY 2020 and 2021 due a combination of lower rainfall in WY
2021 and increases in applied water on the developing citrus orchards. Water demand for the new citrus
acreage is prorated over the first five years beginning in WY 2020, increasing 20 percent per year until
reaching the citrus applied irrigation values for mature trees (UCCE, 2020).

4.4 Rural Domestic and Small Public Water System Extraction

Rural domestic and small PWS groundwater extractions in the Basin were estimated using the methods
described below.

4.4.1 Rural Domestic Demand

As documented in the GSP water budget (GSP Section 6), rural residential groundwater use through 2019
was estimated based on the number of residences identified on aerial images outside of water company
service areas. Each rural residence was assigned a water use of 0.8 AFY, consistent with the San Luis
Obispo County Master Water Plan (Carollo, 2012). As a comparison, a City study reported residential use for
large parcels (>0.26 acres) at 0.6 AFY (City of San Luis Obispo, 2000), which was similar to the average
estimated use per service connection in the Golden State Water Company service area over the historical
base period. Water use per connection at Varian Ranch MWC and Edna Valley East MWC had ranged from
0.6 to 1.5 AFY, averaging approximately 1 acre-foot per year.

For this First Annual Report, the same methodology was applied, using an aerial image from 2021 to update
the estimated number of rural residences. The resulting groundwater extractions for rural domestic
demands in WY 2020 and 2021 are summarized in Table 2. A minor increase of 20 acre-feet was also

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 31



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

applied to the prior estimates for rural domestic totals shown in Table 3, based on a comparison between
the 2018 and 2021 areal imagery. The accuracy level rating of these estimated volumes is low-medium.

Table 2. Estimated Rural Domestic Groundwater Extractions

Water Year San Luis Valley Edna Valley Rural Domestic
(AF) (AF) Total (AF)
2017 160 120 280
2018 160 130 290
2019 160 130 290
2020 170 130 300
2021 170 140 310

Note: AF = acre-feet; totals rounded to closest 10 AF

4.4.2 Small Public Water System Extractions

The category of small PWSs in the Basin includes a wide variety of establishments and facilities that operate
mutual water companies and other types of public water systems under the purview of the County
Environmental Health Department. Groundwater extractions for golf courses and playfields (turf) are
classified as urban extractions and have been included with the small PWS extractions estimates.

During GSP preparation in 2019, there were 45 small PWSs using groundwater from wells. Three of these
small PWSs, Golden State Water Company, Varian Ranch Mutual Water Company, and Edna Ranch Mutual
Water Company, provided metered production records. The remaining 42 small PWSs, mostly in the San Luis
Valley subarea, were assigned water use categories (such as commercial-service, mixed-use office,
manufacturing, etc.) and corresponding water use factors, such as floor space square footage, to estimate
water demand.

For the First Annual Report, small PWSs extractions were updated with the latest available information. The
same three small PWSs that previously reported production provided records for WY 2020 and 2021. The
database for the remaining water systems was reviewed, with a few changes made for systems where
service is now provided by the City. Urban turf irrigation was estimated based on turf acreage, applied water
demand, and irrigation system efficiency using the same soil-water budget methodology described for the
agricultural extractions.

The total amount of water extracted by small PWSs from the Basin, including turf irrigation extractions, is
estimated at 950 and 940 AFY in WY 2020 and 2021, respectively, with the majority of use (about 700 AFY)
in the Edna Valley subarea.

Estimated groundwater extractions for small PWS demands are summarized in Table 3. The accuracy level
rating of these estimated volumes is medium-high.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 32



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Table 3. Estimated Small Public Water System Groundwater Extractions

vt S Eme o
2017 270 720 990
2018 260 750 1,010
2019 260 650 910
2020 260 690 950
2021 240 700 940

Note: AF = acre-feet; includes urban extractions for golf and playfields (turf); totals
rounded to closest 10 AF

4.5 Total Groundwater Extraction Summary

Total groundwater extractions in the Basin for water years 2020 and 2021 are 7,270 AF and 5,960 AF,
respectively. Table 4 summarizes the total water use by sector and indicates the method of measure and
associated level of accuracy. Approximate points of extraction were spatially distributed and colored
according to a grid system to represent the relative pumping across the basin in terms of AF per acre (see
Figure 12).

Table 4. Total Groundwater Extractions

E—

PWS and Rural Domestic

Agriculture (AF)
(AF) Total
Municipal (AF)
(AF) San Luis Edna Valley San Luis
Valley (AF) (AF) Valley (AF) Edna Valley

2020 0 430 820 1,200 3,760 6,210
2021 0 410 840 960 4,070 6,280

Method of PWS metered .

Meeagurg: NA Rural Domer:t?ceEr:timated Soll-Water Balance Model

Level of NA medium medium
Accuracy:
Notes:

AF = acre-feet
PWS = public water systems

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 33



FIGURE 12

C ra\
\

o

s,
/‘\‘?
)

a-n—L‘wU.i'S=~o

S

PACIFIC OCEAN

>

Pumping Distribution
San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

Average Q AFY

>0-25

>25-50

>50 - 100

>100 - 200

[ >200

All Other Features

w Bulletin 118 Boundary
===== Bedrock Divide

=5

[._J City Boundary
] sLO Airport
/\/ Major Road
“\_ Watercourse
’ Waterbody

Date: March 3, 2022
Data Sources: BLM, ESRI, USGS,
Aerial Photo 2020

Document Path: Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report\Figurell Pumping_Distribution.mxd, npalmer



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 5: Surface Water Use (§ 356.2[b][3])

5.1 Introduction

This section addresses the reporting requirement of providing surface water supplies used, or available for
use, and describes the annual volume and sources for the 2020 and 2021 water years. The method of
measurement and level of accuracy is rated on a qualitative scale. The Basin currently benefits from surface
water entitlements from the Nacimiento Water Project (NWP), Salinas Reservoir (aka Santa Margarita Lake),
and Whale Rock Reservoir to provide municipal supply for the City of San Luis Obispo. There are currently no
surface water deliveries to areas outside of the City of San Luis Obispo City limits.

Table 5 provides a breakdown of reported surface water municipal use in the Basin, which is used
exclusively by the City of San Luis Obispo. There is currently no surface water available for agricultural or
recharge project use within the Basin.

5.2 Total Surface Water Use

A summary of total actual surface water use by source is provided in Table 5. The accuracy level rating of
these metered data is high.

Environmental uses of surface water are also recognized but not estimated due to insufficient data to make
an estimate of surface water use. It is expected that environmental uses may be quantified in future annual
reports as more data becomes available.

Table 5. Annual Surface Water Use

Whale Rock CEES

Water Year Nacimiento Water Reservoir Reservoir Total Surface Water
Project (AF) (AF) (AF) Use (AF)
2020 1,562 1,459 2,154 5,176
2021 2,691 1,491 1,266 5,448
Notes:

AF = acre-feet

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 35



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 6: Total Water Use (§ 356.2[b][4])

This section summarizes the total annual groundwater and surface water used to meet municipal,
agricultural, and rural demands within the Basin. For the 2020 and 2021 water years, the quantification of
total water use was completed from reported metered groundwater production, metered surface water
delivery, and from models used to estimate agricultural and rural water demand. Table 6 summarizes the
total annual water use in the Basin by source and water use sector for water years 2020 and 2021. The

method of measurement and a qualitative level of accuracy for each estimate is rated on a qualitative scale
of low, medium, and high.

Table 6. Total Annual Water Use by Source and Water Use Sector

. . PWS and Rural Agriculture
Water Year Municipal (AF) Domestic (AF) ) Total (AF)
Surface Groundwater
Source: Groundwater Groundwater Groundwater and
Water
Surface Water
2020 0 5,176 1,250 4,960 11,390
2021 0 5,448 1,250 5,030 11,728
Method of Metered Metered Estimated Soil-Water Balance
Measure: Model
Aclfl:lrealc(;f high high medium medium
Notes:

AF = acre-feet

PWS = public water systems

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

36



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 7: Change in Groundwater in Storage (§ 356.2[b][5])

7.1 Annual Changes in Groundwater Elevation (§ 356.2[b][5][A])

Annual changes in groundwater elevation in the San Luis Obispo Basin Aquifer for water years 2020 and
2021 are derived from comparison of spring groundwater elevation contour maps from one year to the next.
For example, the Spring 2019 groundwater elevations are subtracted from the Spring 2020 groundwater
elevations resulting in a map depicting the changes in groundwater elevations in the Basin Aquifer that
occurred during that time period (Figure 9). Similar calculations were made for Spring 2020 and Spring
2021 resulting in groundwater elevation change maps in the Basin Aquifer over that time period (Figure 10).
These groundwater elevation change maps are based on a reasonable and thorough analysis of the
currently available data. As discussed previously, a non-uniform set of wells was monitored during water
years 2020 and 2021. It is anticipated that the current SLOFCWD monitoring network will be expanded to
the network presented in Figure 3, to more consistently and robustly assess Basin conditions.

Figure 9 presents the calculated change in water level between Spring 2019 and Spring 2020 based on the
groundwater elevations presented in Figures 4 and 6. In San Luis Valley subarea, the majority of the area
shows changes ranging from -10 feet to +10 feet. This indicates that the San Luis Valley subarea of the
Basin is in relative equilibrium, with no significant changes in groundwater elevations evident during this
time period. (It should be noted that much of the area northwest of Laguna Lake and north of the confluence
of Stenner Creek and San Luis Obispo Creek had no water level data for this time period, and contours were
estimated based on historical patterns; implementation of the improved monitoring network will alleviate
this data gap). In Edna Valley, areas of groundwater decline over this time period are evident near EV-01 and
EV-11.

It is important to note, as described previously, that there was not a uniform data set of wells monitored for
water levels during the monitoring events. To some extent, this can lead to patterns of water level changes
that may be artifacts of the data variability and may not reflect true changes in water levels. These
occurrences will be minimized when a uniform set of wells is used for calculation in future annual reports
and GSP revisions.

Figure 10 presents the calculated change in water level between Spring 2020 and Spring 2021 based on
the groundwater elevations presented in Figures 6 and 8. Most of the San Luis Valley subarea again displays
changes in groundwater elevation between -10 and +10, as in the previous year, indicating relative
equilibrium in the groundwater conditions in this area. An exception is the area indicated in red around well
SLV-05. As discussed previously, this appears to be an artifact of a non-uniform data set. Well SLV-05 had
no measured data in Spring 2020, so contours were estimated based on historically observed patterns. In
Spring 2021, a measured water level was used. Therefore, this apparent water level decline may not reflect
true groundwater conditions. Now that SLV-06 is being monitored, future annual reports will reflect more
consistent data.

In general, the groundwater elevations observed in the Basin during water years 2020 and 2021 reflect
largely static conditions in the San Luis Valley subarea, and water level declines in the Edna Valley subarea.
Water years 2020 and 2021 were both below-average precipitation years. Positive and negative changes in
groundwater elevations from year to year are observed in different parts of the Basin, as has been observed
historically. Seasonal trends of slightly higher spring groundwater elevations compared with fall levels
continued in each of the water years.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 37



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

7.2 Annual and Cumulative Change in Groundwater in Storage
Calculations (§ 356.2[b][5][B])

The groundwater elevation change maps presented above represent a volume change within the Basin
Aquifer for each time period. The volume change depicted on each map represents a total volume, including
the volume occupied by the aquifer sediments and the volume of groundwater stored within the void space
of the aquifer sediments. The portion of void space in the aquifer that can be utilized for groundwater
storage is represented by the aquifer storage coefficient (S), (or specific yield (Sy for an unconfined aquifer).
a unitless factor, which is multiplied by the total volume change to derive the change in groundwater in
storage. Based on work completed for the GSP, S is estimated to be 8 % for the San Luis Valley subarea and
11.7% for the Edna Valley subarea.2 The annual changes of groundwater in storage calculated for water
years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 are presented in Table 7.

Table 7. Annual Changes in Groundwater in Storage - San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Aquifer

San Luis Valley Edna Valley Annual Change
Water Year (AF) (AF) Ii':| g:g::;;v(:—l::)r
2020 210 -750 -540
2021 -450 -5,080 -5,530
TOTAL -240 -5,830 -6,070
Note:

AF = acre-feet

2 Appendix E includes derivation of the storage coefficient and a sensitivity analysis.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 38



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

SECTION 8: Progress toward Basin Sustainability (§ 356.2[c])

8.1 Introduction

This section describes several projects and management actions that are in progress or have been recently
implemented in the Basin to attain sustainability and avoid undesirable results. These projects and actions
include capital projects and policies intended to improve data sets and to reduce or optimize local
groundwater use. Some of the projects were described in concept in the GSP. Some of the actions described
herein are new initiatives. All are intended to be implemented by project participants to reduce pumping and
partially mitigate the degree to which the management actions would be needed.

As described in the GSP, the need for projects and management actions is based on observed Basin
conditions, including the following:

= Groundwater levels are declining in the Edna Valley portion of the Basin, indicating that the amount of
groundwater pumping exceeds the natural recharge.

= Water budgets indicate that the amount of groundwater in storage has been in decline and will continue
to decline in the future if there is no net decrease in pumping demand in Edna Valley.

To mitigate declines in groundwater levels in some parts of the Basin, achieve the sustainability goal before
2042, and avoid undesirable results as required by SMGA regulations, an overall reduction of groundwater
pumping will be needed. A reduction in groundwater pumping can occur as a result of both management
actions and projects that develop new water supplies used in lieu of pumping. The projects and
management actions described in this section will help achieve groundwater sustainability by avoiding
undesirable results.

This section also provides a brief discussion of land subsidence, potential depletion of interconnected
surface waters, and groundwater quality trends that have occurred during water years 2020 and 2021.

8.2 Implementation Approach

As described in the GSP, because the amount of groundwater pumping in the Basin is more than the
estimated sustainable yield and groundwater levels are declining in some parts of the Basin, the GSAs have
already initiated several projects and management actions. It is anticipated that additional new projects and
management actions will be implemented in the future to continue progress towards avoiding or mitigating
undesirable results.

Some of the projects and management actions described in this section are Basin-wide initiatives and some
are area-specific. Generally, the basin-wide management actions apply to all areas of the Basin and reflect
relatively basic GSP implementation requirements. Area-specific projects have been designed to aid in
mitigating water level declines in certain parts of the Basin.

8.3 Basin-Wide Management Actions and Projects

8.3.1 Creation of New County Position for Director of Groundwater Sustainability

On December 17, 2019 the County Board of Supervisors directed County staff to conduct a staffing analysis
and recommendations for GSP implementation. County staff evaluated options ranging from no SGMA
participation as County GSA to full SGMA participation utilizing 100% County staff. The staffing analysis
report was presented to the County Board of Supervisors on March 16, 2021. After deliberation, the board
directed staff to assess a configuration of a single new County staff position (1.0 FTE) with consultant

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 39



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

support for GSP implementation. On April 20, 2021 County staff presented this requested staffing
configuration, detailing the single new County staff position as Director of Groundwater Sustainability (1.0
FTE), reporting directly to the County Administrative Officer, independent of the Public Works Department.
The timeline laid out in the County staff presentation indicated that consultant support would be assessed
through a request for proposal process following hire of the new Director of Groundwater Sustainability. The
County Board of Supervisors directed staff to proceed with creation of and hiring for the new Director of
Groundwater Sustainability County staff position during the April 20, 2021 board meeting. The Director of
Groundwater Sustainability position organization chart is presented in Appendix F.

After the conclusion of Water Year 2021, the County of San Luis Obispo filled the position of Director of
Groundwater Sustainability on November 2, 2021.

8.3.2 Expand Basin Well Monitoring Network

As discussed in Section 2.4.1, during the GSP development a significant number of new private wells were
added to the existing network monitored by the County. In addition, some City-owned wells which had not
been monitored in over twenty years were added to the network. Most of these wells have not been surveyed
for location, land surface elevation, or most importantly, water level measuring point elevation. As a result,
publicly available Digital Elevation Model (DEM) data, or other public sources of elevation data, have been
used to calculate groundwater elevation. This introduces significant potential error to the groundwater
elevation contour maps and hydrographs. The GSP and Annual Report consultants have initiated discussions
with the County Groundwater Sustainability Director to prioritize completing a physical land survey of all 42
wells in the monitoring network. This will result in a more accurate and consistent data set from which to
calculate water level maps, change of storage calculations, and groundwater elevation hydrographs in future
annual reports and GSP updates.

On January 10, 2022, the County installed a new dedicated monitoring well at the Corner of West Foothill
Boulevard and O’Connor Way, designated SLV-23 in the Basin monitoring network (Figure 3). The well is a 2-
inch diameter PVC well set to a total depth of 48 feet and screened from 28 to 48 feet with a screen slot
size of 0.020 inches. This well fills in a significant data gap in the northwestern extent of the Basin along Los
Osos Valley Road and will provide important data to generate water level maps, hydrographs, and storage
change calculations in future annual reports and GSP updates. The well will be outfitted with a continuous
water level transducer initially set to record water levels every hour.

8.3.3 Continuing Identification and Pursuit of Funding Opportunities

It is anticipated that grant funding opportunities will be available in the future to provide opportunities to
obtain capital to implement projects identified in the GSP. It is anticipated that in September, the state will
accept competitive grant applications for water supply projects to improve groundwater sustainability in non-
critically overdrafted basins in the state. It has been communicated that this round of competitive grant
disbursements will prioritize “shovel-ready” projects. Edna Valley stakeholders have had discussions with the
County Sustainability Director regarding the next identified round of grant availability. Funding for the
Sentinel Peak project may be available through fisheries-oriented environmental grant programs. City staff,
County staff, and Edna Valley stakeholders will continue to coordinate activities to leverage all potential
funding sources to help achieve sustainability for the Basin.

8.3.4 GSA Boundary Modifications

On December 3, 2021 the County of San Luis Obispo GSA and City of San Luis Obispo GSAs coordinated
with the Department of Water Resources to effectuate boundary modifications in response to changes to the

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 40



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

City of San Luis Obispo’s city limits. The San Luis Ranch area located in the north-west part of the Basin, and
the Fiero East-West area near the center of the Basin were switched from the County GSA to the City GSA.
During the modification it was determined that the posted notice did not constitute a material change.

8.4 Area-Specific Projects

8.4.1 City of San Luis Obispo Recycled Water Program

The City of San Luis Obispo has been utilizing recycled water from their Water Resource Recovery Facility
(WRRF) as a component of its multi-source water supply since 2006. The City’s goal is to use this water
source to the highest and most beneficial use, and to utilize it to help the City achieve and maintain
groundwater sustainability throughout the SGMA implementation period. The City’s priority is to use the
recycled water to benefit their service area and rate payers. The City currently has over 50 recycled water
accounts, with plans to use this water in the future to help supply future development in their service area.

An upgrade of the WRRF facilities is currently underway. The upgrade will incorporate the use of membrane
bioreactor treatment which will produce higher quality recycled water. Design capacity of the WRRF is
increasing from 5.1 to 5.4 MGD as part of the project as well. The City anticipates bringing online new
recycled water customers in the East Airport Annexation area, San Luis Ranch area, Righetti Ranch area, and
Avila Ranch area over the next 1-3 years.

8.4.2 Sentinel Peak Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project

The Sentinel Peak Recycled Water Project is described in the GSP. Sentinel Peak Resources operates an oil
field in Price Canyon 1-2 miles south of Edna Valley, and currently discharges highly treated recycled water
from their operations to Pismo Creek approximately 1 mile downstream from the edge of the Basin south of
Edna Valley. Representatives for Edna Growers and the Edna Mutual Water Company have engaged in
communication with representatives for Sentinel Peak and the Resource Conservation District to discuss a
project in which this creek discharge point would be moved upstream to the north edge of the Basin where
West Corral de Piedras Creek enters.

This project has been proposed in the past in conjunction with the previous operator of the oil field, Freeport-
McMoRan. A consortium of Edna Valley Growers cooperated with state fisheries stakeholders to identify a
pipeline route and to obtain political support for the project from local government. Progress on the past
efforts to implement this project was postponed when Freeport-McMoRan was sold to Sentinel Peak
Resources. Negotiations have recently re-started.

8.4.3 San Luis Obispo Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project

During the GSP, a conceptual project was identified in which the City would sell excess recycled water to
growers in Edna Valley to augment their water for irrigation. Representatives of Edna Valley growers have
engaged in discussions with the County Director of Groundwater Sustainability and City staff to continue
negotiations with the intention to move the project forward. The project would require construction of a
pipeline from the end of the City’s service area near the airport to growers in Edna Valley. Supply would be
limited by seasonal availability constraints and infrastructure limitations described in the GSP. Negotiations
continue with regard to price and feasibility between Edna Valley representatives, City staff, and County
stakeholders.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 41



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

Numerous challenges exist to develop the project, but considerable time and effort has been expended by
several private entities as well as County and City staff to develop this conceptual project. The primary
benefit from the Project would be higher groundwater elevations in the Edna Valley due to reductions in
groundwater pumping for irrigation from the use of the recycled water. Ancillary benefits could also include
improved groundwater quality from the use and recharge of high-quality recycled water.

8.5 Summary of Progress toward Meeting Basin Sustainability

Both WY 2020 and 2021 were below average precipitation years. Relative to the basin conditions at the end
of the study period as reported in the GSP, this First Annual Report (WY 2020-2021) indicates relative
equilibrium in groundwater conditions in the San Luis Valley part of the Basin, and some additional declines
in the Edna Valley part of the Basin. No RMS well had water levels below the Minimum Threshold defined in
the GSP. It is evident that historical groundwater pumping in the Basin has created challenging conditions
for sustainable management. However, actions are already underway to collect data, improve the monitoring
and data collection networks, and coordinate with affected agencies and entities throughout the Basin to
develop projects and solutions that address the mutual interest in the Basin’s overall sustainability goal.

8.5.1 Subsidence

Subsidence is not currently a major concern for the Basin. Land subsidence is the lowering of the land
surface and may be associated the lowering of water levels through pumping. Subsidence was documented
in the Los Osas Valley in the early 1990s. More recent subsidence can be estimated using Interferometric
Synthetic Aperture Radar (InSAR) data provided by DWR. INSAR measures ground elevation using microwave
satellite imagery data. The GSP documents that no recent subsidence was detected in the Basin between
2015 and 2020. As of the date of this report, there are no more recent land subsidence datasets available
since publication of the GSP. The GSAs will continue to monitor and report annual subsidence as more data
become available.

8.5.2 Interconnected Surface Water

Transient ephemeral surface water flows and groundwater conditions in the Basin make it difficult to assess
the interconnected surface water (ISW) and groundwater and to quantify the degree to which surface water
depletion has occurred. Three RMS wells are designated to monitor conditions of potential ISW. Potential
locations for future stream gage locations and wells were included in the GSP. It has been a brief time since
the submittal of the GSP. No more recent data available since publication of the GSP to assess the
interconnectivity of surface water and groundwater or to quantify potential surface water depletion is
available. It is anticipated that long term improvements to the monitoring network will include more
comprehensive data collection to address this data gap.

8.5.3 Groundwater Quality

Although groundwater quality is not a primary focus of SGMA, actions or projects undertaken by GSAs to
achieve sustainability cannot degrade water quality to the extent that they would cause undesirable results.
As stated in the GSP, groundwater quality in the Basin is generally suitable for both drinking water and
agricultural purposes. Three constituents of concern (COC’s) were identified and discussed in the GSP that
have the potential to be impacted by groundwater management activities. These COC’s identified in the GSP
are total dissolved solids (TDS), nitrate, and arsenic. There is no groundwater quality data available since the
submittal of the GSP to change or update the characterization of groundwater quality.

Implementation of sustainability projects and/or management actions, as presented in the GSP, in this
annual report, or in future reports or GSP updates, are not anticipated to result in degraded groundwater

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 42



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

guality in the Basin. Any potential changes in groundwater quality will be documented in future annual
reports and GSP updates.

8.5.4 Summary of Changes in Basin Conditions

The below-average rainfall water years of 2020 and 2021 impacted groundwater conditions in the Basin.
Groundwater in storage in the Basin decreased about 6,070 AF over the past two years. These estimates will
be more robust in the future when the new monitoring network is implemented, and all the monitoring wells
in the network are surveyed to a common datum. The volume of groundwater extractions in the Basin has
remained relatively consistent for the past several years, averaging about 6,300 AFY over the previous two
years. The known irrigated acreage in the Basin has not changed dramatically since publication of the GSP,
but known changes have been documented. Groundwater in storage has decreased somewhat over the past
two water years; groundwater pumping continues to exceed the estimated future sustainable yield, and at
least some of the projects and management actions described in the GSP and in this First Annual Report will
be necessary in order to bring the Basin into sustainability.

8.5.5 Summary of Impacts of Projects and Management Actions

Groundwater systems respond to stresses slowly and gradually. Additional time will be necessary to judge
the effectiveness and quantitative impacts of the projects and management actions either now underway or
in the planning and implementation stage. However, it is clear that the actions in place and as described in
this First Annual Report are a good start towards reaching the sustainability goals laid out in the GSP. It is
too soon to correlate observed changes in basin conditions with causes based on water resources
management operations. The interim milestones outlined in the GSP will not be assessed for five years. But
the anticipated effects of the projects and management actions now underway are expected to significantly
improve the ability of the Basin stakeholders to reach the necessary sustainability goals.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 43



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

This page intentionally left blank.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

44



FINAL | San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020-2021)

References
Water Systems Consulting, GSI Water Solutions, Cleath-Harris Geologist, Stillwater Sciences, and GEI.
October 2021. San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan.

California Department of Water Resources (DWR) (2016), California’s Groundwater: Bulletin 118 Interim
Update.

GSI Water Solutions, 2018. San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Characterization and Monitoring Well Installation.

Prepared for San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District.

GAMA. 2021. California Water Boards Groundwater Information System.
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

45



—=APPENDIX A

GSP Regulations for Annual Reports




§ 356.2. Annual Reports

Each Agency shall submit an annual report to the Department by April 1 of each year
following the adoption of the Plan. The annual report shall include the following
components for the preceding water year:

(a) General information, including an executive summary and a location map depicting
the basin covered by the report.

(b) A detailed description and graphical representation of the following conditions of
the basin managed in the Plan:

(1) Groundwater elevation data from monitoring wells identified in the
monitoring network shall be analyzed and displayed as follows:

(A) Groundwater elevation contour maps for each principal aquifer in the
basin illustrating, at a minimum, the seasonal high and seasonal low
groundwater conditions.

(B) Hydrographs of groundwater elevations and water year type using historical
data to the greatest extent available, including from January 1, 2015, to current
reporting year.

(2) Groundwater extraction for the preceding water year. Data shall be collected
using the best available measurement methods and shall be presented in a table that
summarizes groundwater extractions by water use sector, and identifies the method
of measurement (direct or estimate) and accuracy of measurements, and a map that
illustrates the general location and volume of groundwater extractions.

(3) Surface water supply used or available for use, for groundwater recharge or in-lieu
use shall be reported based on quantitative data that describes the annual volume
and sources for the preceding water year.

(4) Total water use shall be collected using the best available measurement methods
and shall be reported in a table that summarizes total water use by water use sector,
water source type, and identifies the method of measurement (direct or estimate) and
accuracy of measurements. Existing water use data from the most recent Urban
Water Management Plans or Agricultural Water Management Plans within the basin
may be used, as long as the data are reported by water year.

(5) Change in groundwater in storage shall include the following:

(A) Change in groundwater in storage maps for each principal aquifer in the basin.
36
(B) A graph depicting water year type, groundwater use, the annual change in
groundwater in storage, and the cumulative change in groundwater in storage for
the basin based on historical data to the greatest extent available, including from
January 1, 2015, to the current reporting year.

(c) A description of progress towards implementing the Plan, including achieving interim
milestones, and implementation of projects or management actions since the previous
annual report.

Note: Authority cited: Section 10733.2, Water Code.

Reference: Sections 10727.2, 10728, and 10733.2, Water Code.



—APPENDIX B

Precipitation Data




Data Source: :lSLO County I:lReservoir #1 :llTRC Manual Data

Monthly Precipitation Data (inches):

e it
(Starting in Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. TOTAL |Year (Endingin
July) June)
1870 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.68 0.38 2.90 151 4.43 0.00 2.79 0.28 0.00 12.97 1871
1871 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.40 13.93 5.16 3.45 0.71 1.37 0.00 0.00 27.02 1872
1872 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 5.00 1.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.79 1873
1873 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.96 4.29 4.04 3.23 1.00 0.00 0.00 20.52 1874
1874 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.28 2.05 0.48 12.10 0.28 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.69 1875
1875 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.20 2.20 9.87 5.29 5.30 1.26 0.00 0.00 30.12 1876
1876 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.16 0.00 0.00 4.83 0.42 1.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.15 1877
1877 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.42 3.90 7.88 11.91 2.74 2.75 0.00 0.00 30.60 1878
1878 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.50 2.58 1.78 2.15 1.60 1.80 0.25 0.00 11.66 1879
1879 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.75 1.40 3.03 1.75 7.23 2.36 8.78 0.52 0.00 25.82 1880
1880 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.48 13.35 4.71 1.90 1.40 1.85 0.00 0.00 23.69 1881
1881 0.00 0.00 0.40 1.65 0.25 2.00 0.85 3.40 6.75 1.73 0.00 0.00 17.03 1882
1882 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.69 2.95 0.44 1.50 1.60 4.88 1.10 3.85 0.00 17.01 1883
1883 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.56 10.57 10.21 12.41 3.39 0.00 2.26 42.40 1884
1884 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 0.13 8.85 2.25 0.00 0.94 3.15 0.10 0.00 17.59 1885
1885 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04 12.90 3.67 5.78 0.79 2.37 3.75 0.00 0.00 29.30 1886
1886 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.25 1.25 1.06 1.10 9.60 1.29 1.56 0.36 0.07 16.54 1887
1887 0.02 0.00 2.05 0.25 1.40 3.15 7.02 0.28 3.84 0.14 0.16 0.04 18.35 1888
1888 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.48 3.36 1.50 2.08 7.51 0.61 0.00 0.00 19.54 1889
1889 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.19 2.46 11.37 7.27 4.67 3.07 0.29 0.41 0.00 38.73 1890
1890 0.00 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.42 6.04 0.88 7.14 1.97 1.96 0.13 0.15 19.51 1891
1891 0.00 0.00 0.27 0.00 0.20 5.15 0.70 2.88 4.25 0.60 2.23 0.05 16.33 1892
1892 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15 2.76 6.57 4.02 6.35 9.33 1.14 0.08 0.00 30.40 1893
1893 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.82 0.45 1.64 1.83 2.31 0.79 0.41 1.32 0.21 9.81 1894
1894 0.05 0.00 1.81 1.71 0.35 5.45 8.05 1.82 2.44 0.67 0.47 0.00 22.82 1895
1895 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.80 1.56 0.68 8.23 0.00 3.16 2.22 0.10 0.00 17.75 1896
1896 0.04 0.20 0.00 1.44 3.02 3.04 5.22 4.40 3.17 0.18 0.04 0.00 20.75 1897
1897 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.79 0.07 0.65 1.37 2.20 0.91 0.06 1.04 0.04 7.20 1898
1898 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.39 0.08 0.64 5.56 0.28 7.62 1.54 0.10 0.92 17.33 1899
1899 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.92 1.94 4.51 2.13 0.16 2.18 0.98 1.38 0.01 17.21 1900
1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.93 8.01 0.26 11.21 5.89 0.58 2.83 0.69 0.00 31.40 1901
1901 0.00 0.18 0.10 2.58 1.58 0.12 1.46 8.79 4.68 2.44 0.03 0.00 21.96 1902
1902 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 1.52 1.48 3.67 3.18 4.98 1.66 0.00 0.00 18.49 1903
1903 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.48 0.32 1.08 6.79 5.13 2.97 0.20 0.00 16.99 1904
1904 0.00 0.06 3.54 1.00 0.13 1.72 2.35 7.51 4.19 0.77 2.26 0.03 23.56 1905
1905 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.97 0.32 6.37 3.48 10.86 0.71 4.22 0.16 28.12 1906
1906 0.00 0.03 0.04 0.00 1.08 5.14 8.78 2.45 6.79 0.34 0.11 0.02 24.78 1907
1907 0.00 0.00 0.07 3.23 0.01 3.33 6.69 3.59 0.79 0.14 0.21 0.00 18.06 1908
1908 0.00 0.00 0.84 0.59 0.73 1.70 17.00 6.44 4.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 31.37 1909
1909 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.54 2.24 10.09 3.48 0.43 3.81 0.23 0.00 0.00 20.84 1910
1910 0.00 0.00 0.41 0.30 0.27 0.95 14.31 4.86 11.92 1.32 0.08 0.00 34.42 1911
1911 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.12 0.46 3.72 2.80 0.02 5.65 2.27 2.09 0.00 17.15 1912
1912 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.79 0.24 3.48 1.66 0.96 0.52 0.30 0.09 8.08 1913
1913 0.00 0.91 0.07 0.00 3.97 5.73 15.03 331 1.24 0.68 0.06 0.22 31.22 1914
1914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.12 6.01 7.11 9.51 0.95 2.47 1.91 0.01 28.17 1915
1915 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.34 3.58 18.25 2.38 2.12 0.21 0.04 0.00 26.93 1916
1916 0.00 0.00 1.94 1.82 0.38 9.26 1.59 7.01 0.44 0.11 0.49 0.00 23.04 1917
1917 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.47 0.14 0.55 9.63 7.12 0.04 0.01 0.00 18.06 1918
1918 0.00 0.01 0.73 0.81 4.00 1.92 151 5.48 3.35 0.09 0.19 0.00 18.09 1919
1919 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.12 0.14 4.52 0.82 2.36 4.78 1.65 0.00 0.05 14.86 1920
1920 0.00 0.03 0.00 1.23 1.64 3.85 6.18 2.16 2.29 0.57 1.32 0.00 19.27 1921
1921 0.00 0.00 0.40 0.16 0.16 7.22 4.48 6.49 3.46 0.27 0.72 0.00 23.36 1922




Beginning of

End of Water

‘(ASI:at::tri:ge?r: Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. TOTAL |Year (Endingin
July) June)
1922 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.47 5.30 6.64 4.51 1.36 0.38 4.57 0.01 0.04 23.28 1923
1923 0.00 0.00 0.70 0.16 0.32 0.73 1.46 0.44 4.05 0.33 0.00 0.00 8.19 1924
1924 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.94 0.89 2.04 2.78 4.32 4.21 2.68 3.58 0.15 21.63 1925
1925 0.00 0.03 0.06 0.37 0.05 3.00 3.32 7.29 0.33 4.31 0.06 0.00 18.82 1926
1926 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.66 8.24 1.41 2.78 7.78 2.10 1.54 0.05 0.12 24.68 1927
1927 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.54 3.04 4.93 0.34 3.89 5.65 0.51 0.43 0.00 21.33 1928
1928 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.51 5.42 1.96 2.90 1.78 1.39 0.00 0.34 17.30 1929
1929 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.33 6.07 3.32 3.15 0.67 1.21 0.17 14.97 1930
1930 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.04 1.98 0.63 6.22 1.92 0.54 0.48 2.52 0.16 14.63 1931
1931 0.00 0.06 0.00 0.09 2.88 14.99 4.95 5.92 0.88 0.40 0.18 0.00 30.35 1932
1932 0.04 0.02 0.05 0.33 0.31 1.81 8.87 0.33 1.03 0.17 0.93 1.88 15.77 1933
1933 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.95 0.00 7.11 0.05 4.80 0.07 0.00 0.38 1.61 14.97 1934
1934 0.00 0.00 0.07 2.28 391 2.84 6.01 0.93 4.59 5.35 0.01 0.00 25.99 1935
1935 0.00 0.71 0.00 0.74 1.94 2.72 2.53 12.00 1.49 1.55 0.14 0.20 24.02 1936
1936 0.14 0.00 0.11 1.69 0.00 8.29 7.98 9.25 5.56 0.22 0.00 0.05 33.29 1937
1937 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.78 7.51 2.70 11.96 6.79 1.12 0.09 0.00 31.04 1938
1938 0.00 0.00 0.54 0.53 0.48 1.08 3.39 1.97 1.92 0.26 0.13 0.00 10.30 1939
1939 0.02 0.00 0.59 1.34 1.07 1.92 9.29 6.41 1.89 2.37 0.01 0.00 2491 1940
1940 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.78 0.25 9.68 7.80 9.85 8.60 5.23 0.73 0.00 42.92 1941
1941 0.02 0.02 0.00 1.14 0.95 10.18 2.80 1.93 2.33 3.94 0.30 0.00 23.61 1942
1942 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.54 1.34 3.35 10.83 2.01 6.94 1.04 0.00 0.00 26.06 1943
1943 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.15 0.42 4.57 1.77 9.45 2.61 2.22 0.24 0.01 22.44 1944
1944 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14 6.10 2.18 0.16 6.48 5.91 0.12 0.10 0.09 21.28 1945
1945 0.00 0.03 0.11 1.14 0.83 7.36 0.63 2.26 4.20 1.24 0.19 0.00 17.99 1946
1946 0.04 0.02 0.00 0.55 6.64 2.68 0.44 1.15 2.04 0.20 0.27 0.24 14.27 1947
1947 0.00 0.04 0.00 1.40 0.12 1.47 0.06 2.17 5.25 4.14 0.89 0.00 15.54 1948
1948 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.39 0.02 3.50 1.94 241 5.68 0.11 0.00 0.00 14.05 1949
1949 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.23 3.85 4.89 3.88 1.41 2.53 0.17 0.00 18.96 1950
1950 0.46 0.00 0.03 2.12 2.38 3.25 3.42 131 1.03 1.48 0.13 0.00 15.61 1951
1951 0.00 0.04 0.05 0.93 1.96 8.39 9.53 0.63 6.65 1.05 0.04 0.03 29.30 1952
1952 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.55 7.28 2.37 0.00 1.40 1.99 0.15 0.04 16.83 1953
1953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.45 0.42 6.10 3.50 4.90 1.28 0.09 0.03 19.77 1954
1954 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.77 3.10 5.60 1.96 0.18 2.67 1.00 0.00 17.28 1955
1955 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 1.93 10.88 6.51 1.46 0.01 3.47 0.90 0.00 25.17 1956
1956 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.65 0.00 0.49 3.01 3.88 1.17 3.11 1.57 0.00 13.88 1957
1957 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.68 0.55 4.23 3.78 8.99 8.40 6.51 0.23 0.00 34.37 1958
1958 0.00 0.00 0.95 0.00 0.32 0.18 2.69 6.60 0.00 0.95 0.07 0.00 11.76 1959
1959 0.00 0.00 0.73 0.00 0.00 0.60 4.23 6.85 1.52 1.94 0.04 0.00 15.91 1960
1960 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.22 3.76 1.67 1.97 0.91 1.74 0.49 0.33 0.04 11.13 1961
1961 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00 4.60 2.14 2.88 13.96 2.16 0.13 0.04 0.06 25.99 1962
1962 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.52 0.04 2.73 3.56 8.08 4.61 3.84 0.33 0.09 24.80 1963
1963 0.00 0.00 0.19 1.94 4.08 0.15 3.01 0.12 2.10 1.69 1.03 0.37 14.68 1964
1964 0.02 0.00 0.10 1.43 3.79 5.78 4.10 0.42 2.29 391 0.00 0.00 21.84 1965
1965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.80 4.12 2.13 1.15 0.29 0.12 0.00 0.01 15.62 1966
1966 0.15 0.00 1.11 0.00 4.40 7.70 0.00 0.58 6.38 6.90 0.36 0.13 27.71 1967
1967 0.00 0.00 1.20 0.00 3.83 3.05 2.43 2.07 3.70 1.31 0.35 0.00 17.94 1968
1968 0.00 0.00 0.01 3.08 2.10 3.92 24.63 15.16 1.88 3.72 0.00 0.03 54.53 1969
1969 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.62 0.89 1.73 7.28 1.42 4.11 0.18 0.00 0.07 16.40 1970
1970 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.11 6.02 8.51 1.89 0.42 0.73 1.56 1.22 0.00 20.46 1971
1971 0.00 0.00 0.19 0.36 2.00 7.03 1.03 0.86 0.00 0.89 0.06 0.00 12.42 1972
1972 0.04 0.00 0.00 2.72 6.79 2.00 13.84 9.67 4.94 0.00 0.02 0.00 40.02 1973
1973 0.00 0.00 0.07 2.18 4.18 4.90 5.17 0.43 8.97 2.81 0.00 0.02 28.73 1974
1974 0.02 0.00 0.00 1.96 0.74 4.93 0.26 8.35 5.90 2.00 0.00 0.00 24.16 1975
1975 0.00 0.00 0.02 2.23 0.36 0.18 0.01 4.17 2.54 0.88 0.00 0.03 10.42 1976
1976 0.00 1.41 3.87 0.50 1.03 2.49 2.01 0.08 2.13 0.06 3.29 0.00 16.87 1977




Beginning of

End of Water

‘(ASI:at::tri:ge?r: Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. TOTAL |Year (Endingin
July) June)
1977 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.05 0.28 8.49 15.76 10.71 8.09 4.37 0.00 0.07 47.85 1978
1978 0.00 0.00 1.18 0.00 2.46 2.24 4.62 5.99 4.03 0.24 0.00 0.00 20.76 1979
1979 0.00 0.00 0.20 1.28 1.21 4.84 9.22 1191 3.47 0.70 0.43 0.00 33.26 1980
1980 0.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 2.10 6.40 2.15 7.48 0.34 0.00 0.00 18.77 1981
1981 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.59 2.97 1.97 5.87 1.65 8.89 4.12 0.01 0.17 27.24 1982
1982 0.00 0.11 1.19 1.74 6.28 4.97 10.05 10.53 8.61 3.30 0.61 0.00 47.39 1983
1983 0.00 0.91 0.15 2.47 6.54 6.72 0.18 0.97 1.02 0.82 0.00 0.00 19.78 1984
1984 0.00 0.08 0.00 1.27 3.61 3.76 0.72 1.94 3.07 0.30 0.02 0.00 14.77 1985
1985 0.04 0.02 0.04 1.05 4.39 2.03 2.65 11.79 7.26 0.16 0.00 0.00 29.43 1986
1986 0.01 0.00 1.14 0.00 0.28 151 2.48 2.90 6.62 0.19 0.06 0.00 15.19 1987
1987 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.76 1.49 4.95 2.87 2.67 1.29 3.44 0.20 0.18 19.85 1988
1988 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.85 8.08 0.98 1.66 1.99 0.76 0.12 0.00 15.46 1989
1989 0.00 0.00 1.70 1.62 0.55 0.00 3.91 2.98 0.70 0.48 1.42 0.00 13.36 1990
1990 0.00 0.00 0.56 0.00 0.36 0.43 0.81 2.39 12.82 0.43 0.00 0.80 18.60 1991
1991 0.00 0.07 0.00 0.44 0.58 4.49 3.43 9.84 3.15 0.10 0.00 0.04 22.14 1992
1992 0.44 0.00 0.00 1.29 0.00 5.45 10.51 8.61 4.03 0.25 0.23 0.09 30.90 1993
1993 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.22 1.89 2.20 293 5.97 1.43 1.46 0.86 0.00 16.96 1994
1994 0.00 0.00 2.38 0.89 2.51 1.15 16.03 2.25 16.48 1.12 0.74 0.76 44.31 1995
1995 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.40 3.55 4.68 9.73 1.78 1.90 1.05 0.00 23.11 1996
1996 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.23 4.43 10.88 13.31 0.46 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 31.36 1997
1997 0.05 0.01 0.00 0.00 5.84 5.32 6.86 15.07 3.79 3.58 3.41 0.05 43.98 1998
1998 0.00 0.00 0.35 0.37 1.88 1.22 3.62 2.37 5.19 2.07 0.00 0.00 17.07 1999
1999 0.00 0.00 0.13 0.00 1.69 0.08 4.33 13.17 1.92 297 0.21 0.34 24.84 2000
2000 0.00 0.00 0.02 2.22 0.03 0.19 8.10 7.17 4.94 1.87 0.00 0.00 24.54 2001
2001 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.49 5.47 3.03 131 0.84 2.14 133 0.18 0.00 14.79 2002
2002 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.00 4.42 8.07 0.38 3.16 3.51 1.92 1.39 0.00 22.90 2003
2003 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.71 3.25 1.13 8.29 0.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.02 2004
2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.83 3.96 6.21 6.78 5.54 4.29 0.68 1.46 0.01 29.76 2005
2005 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.01 1.17 0.83 4.32 1.34 3.38 2.88 1.33 0.00 15.31 2006
2006 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.63 3.03 1.61 4.14 0.51 0.75 0.08 0.00 11.03 2007
2007 0.00 0.08 0.04 0.98 0.08 4.45 9.84 3.58 0.12 0.71 0.00 0.00 19.88 2008
2008 0.00 0.16 0.00 0.19 1.58 1.89 0.87 3.11 1.49 0.51 0.20 0.35 10.35 2009
2009 0.00 0.00 0.08 7.36 0.08 4.80 8.94 5.75 1.81 2.40 0.51 0.00 31.73 2010
2010 0.00 0.00 0.01 2.20 2.24 12.09 0.47 4.33 7.20 0.16 1.42 1.38 31.50 2011
2011 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.51 3.20 0.26 3.27 0.73 2.95 3.69 0.00 0.00 14.62 2012
2012 0.00 0.03 0.00 1.35 3.07 6.42 1.35 0.89 0.90 0.00 0.31 0.01 14.33 2013
2013 0.03 0.00 0.02 0.44 0.34 0.27 0.03 5.83 2.57 1.08 0.00 0.00 10.61 2014
2014 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.51 5.89 0.12 231 0.02 1.49 0.18 0.00 11.52 2015
2015 1.37 0.00 0.05 0.13 1.78 2.50 6.85 0.70 5.84 0.25 0.00 0.00 19.47 2016
2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.85 2.10 4.17 13.36 11.00 2.71 2.29 0.45 0.00 38.93 2017
2017 0.00 0.04 0.24 0.01 0.49 0.17 3.55 0.15 9.12 0.56 0.01 0.00 14.34 2018
2018 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.70 5.03 1.20 7.02 7.41 6.01 0.22 1.89 0.00 29.48 2019
2019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.28 4.22 0.44 0.02 5.81 2.87 0.19 0.05 15.88 2020
2020 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.93 1.86 7.92 0.00 1.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.09 2021




—APPENDIX C

Groundwater Level and Groundwater Storage Monitoring
Well Network




Groundwater Level Monitoring Network

Appendix C

3
Local ID* TRS / State ID? X Y Dv::llh I?\ctreerjzl 2P Elev. First Data tast Data p[::itoad bata Aquifer® \,Nel,l s | well Use® GSA
(feet) (feet) (feet AMSL) VR Ve (years) Count Criteria
sLv-01 305/12E-23€ 5763498.0| 2307722.0| (pending) | (pending) 304 (pending) Qa GDE, T Mw County
sLv-02 305/12€-22G 5765468.9| 2305193.3| (pending) | (pending) 276 (pending) Qa MW City
sLv-03 305/12€-30P 5747129.7| 2300343.2 153 Qa IRR-1 County
sLv-04 305/12E-3581 5768429.3| 2208214.4| 48 28-48 215.6 1991 2020 29 38 Qa IRR-A City
SLV-05 305/12E-35D 5766014.2| 2207818.7| 52 32:52 187 1990 2018 28 7 Qa GDE, T IRR-A City
SLV-06 315/12E-04D 5756745.6| 2202537.7| 85 45-85 150 1989 1 1 Qa T Mw City
sLv-07 315/12E-04K 5758677.8| 2200384.3| 125 55-125 139.5 1992 2000 8 46 Qpr PS-1 City
sLv-08 315/12E-03K 5763487.4| 2200226.0| 70 50-70 128 1988 2020 32 2 Qpr IRR-A City
SLV-09 315/12E-4R1 5759261.7| 2289227.3| 130 40-130 129.5 1988 2020 32 48 Qa/Qpr sus PS-1 City
sLv-10 315/12E-3Q 5763256.2| 2289115.1| 48 131 2017 2020 3 82 Qa MW City
sLv-11 315/126-3P1 5762001.1| 2288573.6] 61 119 1990 2006 16 31 Qa MW City
SLV-12 315/12E-10D3 5761213.3| 2286945.5 175 0-90; 150-17 109.2 1992 2020 28 72 Qa/Qpr/Tps ISW, SUB, T IRR-A City
sLv-13 315/12E-11D 5766075.3| 2286650.3| 40 May-40 12175 1996 2020 2 49 Qa T, GDE MW City
sLv-14 315/12E-12E 5770001.8| 2286371.5| 20 20-May 144.68 1990 2020 30 60 Qa MW County
sLv-15 315/12E-10G2 5763888.4| 2285703.3| 190 122 1965 2020 55 90 Qpr IRR-A City
sLV-16 315/12E-10H3 5764170.7| 2285620.0| 165 65-165 122 1984 2020 36 68 Qpr wL DOM-A City
sLv-17 315/12E-11M 5766025.2| 2284993.8| 100 60-100 119.78 1996 2020 2 73 Qpr MW County
sLv-18 315/12E-11K 5769088.4| 2284549.3| 30 21-Jun 133.28 1990 2020 30 59 Qa MW County
sLv-19 315/126-14C1 5767192.3| 2282627.0 128 1958 2020 62 98 Qpr WL, GDE, T IRR-A County
sLv-20 315/13€-18D 5776258.9| 2282139.0 202 Qa Mw County
sLv-21 315/12E-13A 57727830 2282039.5| 60 50-60 178.68 2018 2018 1 Qpr MW County
sLv-22 315/12E-13C 5775063.4| 2281053.1| 100 11-100 178 2004 2020 16 2 Qpr/Kjf T IRR-1 County
sLv-23 5753426.0| 2200828.0] 48 28-48 138.25 2022 2022 0 0 Qa MW County
EV-01 315/13E-16N1 5786083.4| 2277122.1| 72 324 1958 2020 62 99 Qa IsW, T DOM-A County
EV-02 315/13E-20A 5786620.8| 2275622.5| 75 305 Qa GDE IRR-1 County
EV-03 315/13E-19H4 5780328.7| 2275069.4| 250 178-250 254 Qpr/Tps IRR-A County
EV-04 315/13E-19H1 5781018.4| 2274987.6 262 1958 2020 62 100 Tps WL GWS, T|  IRR-A County
EV-05 315/13E-20G 5784473.2| 2274357.8| 400 120-400 280 Tps IRR-1 County
EV-06 315/13E-19)1 5779762.2| 2274076.8 251 1998 2020 22 4 Qpr DOM-I County
EV-07 315/13E-1912 5779828.3| 2273795.1 250 1998 2020 22 45 Tps DOM-A County
EV-08 315/13E-21L 5789142.5| 2272893.7 350 Qa GDE, T IRR-A County
EV-09 315/13E-19R3 5779269.0| 2271824.3| 440 [0-190; 2904 239 1974 2020 46 45 Tps/Tm WL, GWS PS-A County
EV-10 315/13E-28F 5788113.2| 2269755.9| 340 200-330 344 Qpr/Tps IRR-A County
Ev-11 315/13E-20F6 5782878.1| 2269254.1| 150 55-150 230 2011 2020 9 Qpr/Tm ISW, GDE, T Mw County
EV-12 315/136-2813 5790677.2| 2268400.0| 600 303 1993 2020 27 39 Qpr/Tps IRR-A County
Ev-13 315/136-27M3 5791041.4| 2267983.1| 400 130-380 289 1993 2020 27 34 Qpr/Tps WL, GWS IRR-A County
Ev-14 315/13E-27R 5796154.5| 2266436.8| 300 90-290 319 2017 2020 3 6 Qpr/Tps T Mw County
EV-15 315/13E-27Q 5795453.0| 2266061.0 307 1989 2020 31 9 Qpr/Tps DOM-I County
EV-16 315/13€-35D 5797475.5| 2264847.4| 260 200-260 323 1988 2020 32 188 Tps WL, GWS PS-A County
EV-17 315/13E-35F 5708828.5| 2263327.5| 260 200-260 333 2014 2020 6 66 Tos/Kjf PS-l County
EV-18 315/13E-36R1 5807420.6| 2260616.0 327 1968 2020 52 99 (out of Basin) IRR-A County

Notes:

1
2
3
4

Representative Monitoring Sites are in bold. Wells with known State Well Completion Reports are underlined.

RS = Township Range Section and %-% section listed, State Well ID bolded where applicable.

Reference Point elevations from various sources with variable accuracy.

Principal Aquifers are Quaternary Alluvium (Qa), Quaternary Paso Robles Formation (Qpr), and Tertiary Pismo Formation (Tps).

Tertiary Monterey Formation (Tm) and Cretaceous-Jurassic Franciscan Assemblage (KJf). Aquifers are inferred where construction information is not available.

5.

Representative well criteria include Subsidence (SUB), Interconnected Surface Water Depletion (ISW), Chronic Water Level Decline (WL), and Groundwater Storage Decline (GSW).
Other criteria are Transducer site (T), and Groundwater Dependent Ecosystem indicator evaluation site (GDE), which may be paired with nearby existing or proposed stream gage. Transducer

installations are pending well owner authorization. Measurement frequency is semi-annual for all wells except Transducer sites (T), which are measured daily.
Well Use includes Monitoring Well (MW), Irrigation Well (IRR), Public Supply Well (PS), and Domestic Well (DOM). Modifiers are Active (A) or Inactive (I).

6
Information for some wells inferred pending confirmation

Other bedrock aquifers (non-Basin sediments) are




—APPENDIX D

Hydrographs




140

120

100

80

60

Water Level Elevation (feet)

40

20

0
1960 1970 1980

n_N

MO- 110 ft

MT- 80 ft

2030

2040

APPENDIX D

RMS SLV-19
(31S/12E-14C01)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
M Interim Milestone(s)
=== Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




130

110

90

70

50

30

Water Level Elevation (feet)

10

-10

-50
1960 1970 1980

1990

2000

e,

i

MT- 70 ft

2010

2020 2030

2040

APPENDIX D

RMS SLV-16
(31S/12E-10H03 )

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLv-09,U@

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




130

110

90

70

50

30

Water Level Elevation (feet)

10

-10

-30

-50
1960 1970 1980

1990

2000

] | O
MT- 96 ft
2010 2020 2030 2040

APPENDIX D

SLV-12
(31S/12E-10D03)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SL\/rlZ%
SLV-09,
sw—‘m@o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




130

120

110

100

90

Water Level Elevation (feet)

80

70

60
1960 1970 1980 1990

e
MT- 102 ft
2000 2010 2020 2030 2040

APPENDIX D

SLV-09
(Pacific Beach Well #1)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

sw—le
SLV-09,
sw—‘m)?o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




250

200

150

100

50

Water Level Elevation (feet)

50

100

150

-200
1960 1970 1980

1990

2000

MT- 82 ft

2010

2020

2030

2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-09
(31S/13E-19R03 )

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09
sw—‘m)?o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




275

250

225

200 .

175
MT- 160 ft

150

125

Water Level Elevation (feet)

100

75

50

25

1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-04
(31S/13E-19H01 )

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09
sw—‘m)?o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




300

200

100

Water Level Elevation (feet)

-100
1960 1970 1980

1990

2000

a
|
MT-172 ft
2010 2020 2030 2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-12
(31S/13E-27M03)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal
Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09,
sw—‘m@o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




240

220

200

180

160

Water Level Elevation (feet)

140

120

100

80
1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010

2020

MT- 177 ft

2030

2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-11
(31S/13E-29F06)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09,
sw—‘m@o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




330

320
(] %T - s
310 {e !

300

290

280

270 o

Water Level Elevation (feet)
@

260

250

240

230
1960 1970 1980 1990

2000

MO-314 ft
—& 88—

MT- 264 ft

2010

2020

2030 2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-01
(31S/13E-16N01)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
M Interim Milestone(s)
=== Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
~ Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal

Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09,
SLV—‘lGQO

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




340

320

300

280

260

240

220

200

180

Water Level Elevation (feet)

160

140

120

100

80

60
1960 1970 1980

g

MT-150 ft

2030 2040

APPENDIX D

RMS EV-16
(VRMWC #1)

San Luis Obispo, California

LEGEND

—eo— Observed
B Interim Milestone(s)
Measurable Objective (MO)
=== Minimum Threshold (MT)
Land Surface Elevation
Bedrock Elevation (approx)
Water Year Type
Wet
Above Normal
Below Normal
Dry

Critical

SLV—IZ%
SLV-09
sw—‘m)?o

SLV-19

Y:\0667_County_of_San_Luis_Obisbo\Source_Figures\020_SLO_Basin_Annual_Report




—=APPENDIX E

Aquifer Storage Coefficient Derivation




6.4.6. Total Groundwater in Storage

Groundwater is stored within the pore space of Basin sediments. The Specific yield is a ratio of the
volume of pore water that will drain under the influence of gravity to the total volume of saturated
sediments. The specific yield method for estimating groundwater in storage is the product of total
saturated Basin volume and average specific yield. Calculation of total groundwater in storage for
selected years was performed based on the specific yield method.

Estimates of specific yield for Basin sediments were obtained based on a review of 21 representative
well logs. The lithology for each well log was correlated with specific yield values reported for sediment
types in San Luis Obispo County (Johnson, 1967). A summary of the correlations is shown in Table 6-
13. Locations of well logs used for the specific yield correlations are shown in the referenced cross-
sections from the SLO Basin Characterization Report (GSI Water Solutions, 2018).

Groundwater in storage calculations were performed for the Spring conditions of 1986, 1990, 1995,
1998, 2011, 2014, and 2019 using the specific yield method. Water level contours for each year were
prepared based on available water level data from various sources, including the SLCFCWCD water
level monitoring program, Geotracker Groundwater Information System data, groundwater monitoring
reports, Stakeholder provided information, and Environmental Impact Reports. Water level contour
maps for the Spring 1986 and Spring 2019 are shown in Figure 6-18 and Figure 6-19.

The water level contours for storage calculations extend to the Basin boundaries. Groundwater levels
in the San Luis Valley subarea may contour at, or slightly above, ground surface in areas where
wetlands are present, and there are no major differences between Spring 1986 and Spring 2019 water
levels. In the Edna Valley subarea, water level contours show some notable areas of decline between
1986 and 2019 near the intersection of Edna Road (Highway 227) and Biddle Ranch Road and at the
southeast end of the Basin. Declines in these areas are also shown for other time intervals in Figure
5-8 and Figure 5-9 of Chapter 5 (Groundwater Conditions). Of note, however, is that Spring 2019 water
levels shown in Figure 6-18 are lower near the intersection of Edna and Biddle Ranch Road than for the
same period shown in Figure 5-6. This is because Figure 5-6 contours pressure in a shallow alluvial
aquifer in this area while Figure 6-19 contours pressure in the deeper Pismo Formation aquifer that is
the main supply aquifer for irrigation, and more appropriate for water budget storage calculations.



Table 6-13. Specific Yield Averages

AQUIFER SPECIFIC YIELD (PERCENT)

WELL ID BASIN CROSS-SECTION QAL QTP PISMO
139405 B-B' 3.0 4.7

158599 G-G' 6.8 6.9 18.0
279128 C2-C2' 11.0

279130 AT-A2 8.2 6.5 3.0
287786 ci1-c1’ 7.2

319126 ci1-ct' 5.5 11.7

438979 AT-A2 4.4 8.1

469906 A3-A4 12.0 10.7
529099 E-E' 8.1 11.2
68734 A2-A3 5.9 8.0
710817 G-G' 3.0 5.0 10.8
73143 AT-A2 12.7 5.8

782309 A2-A3 7.1 10.5 15.8
782656 D-D' 5.0 16.0

026022 H-H' 7.4 18.6
e0047435 G-G' 6.6 4.5 17.6
e0115806 offset I-I' 9.1 16.2
e0161526 F-F' 5.4 15.6
0183287 H-H' 3.0 7.0

e0225875 A2-A3 3.6 17.3 10.1
TH1 c1-cn' 5.9 8.9 18.0
AVERAGE SPECIFIC YIELD 6.2 8.5 13.4
BASIN AVERAGE (WEIGHTED) 10.5

SAN LUIS VALLEY SUBAREA (WEIGHTED) 8.0

EDNA VALLEY SUBAREA (WEIGHTED) 11.7

Notes: Cross-sections shown in SLO Basin Characterization Report (GS1 Water Solutions, 2018)
Qal = alluvium; QTp = Paso Robles Formation; Pismo = Pismo Formation

Weighted averages based on penetrated thicknesses of aquifer type.



—=APPENDIX F

Director of Groundwater Sustainability Organization Chart




Attachment 1 - County GSA Director Organization Chart

Position Workload
County GSA Director (Staff lead for County
1.00 FTE
GSA work efforts)
Staffing for various functions by consultants TBD

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE

(" TECHNICAL & FIELD

WORK CONSULTANT

* Technical investigations

* Hydrological studies & models
* Pumping limitations regulation
* Monitoring network data

* Metering & reporting program
» Data management system

- J

10f1

OFFICER
4 )
COUNTY GSA DIRECTOR (1.00 FTE)
« SLO Basin GSP Plan Manager DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF
* Board of Supervisors coordination PLANNING & BUILDING PUBLIC WORKS
» County priorities/policy alignment
» State agency coordination
* Consultant/staff management
. J
N ( ADMINISTRATIVE & N\ ( REGULATORY & R (" ENVIRONMENTAL )
FINANCIAL CONSULTANT LEGAL CONSULTANT CONSULTANT
¢ Administrative support * Developing and * CEQA & environmental
* Budget development enforcing regulations support
¢ Financial administration * Legal support
* Clerk duties
* Communications/outreach
* GSP program management
\§ /. /L J




—APPENDIX G

Public Comments on San Luis Obispo Valley Groundwater
Basin Annual Report, Water Years 2020-2021




Public Comments on the Annual Report for the SLO Basin, Water Years 2020-2021

Name Date Comment Response
Received
Rod Curb 2/14/22 | Brandon,

Below are my two comments for the SLO Basin I

WY2021 Annual Report. This f|gu.re has
been edited to

1) Comment/Question regarding Figure 11, reflect the

Pumping Distribution, graphic: correct
pumpage

In reference to the red hexagon at the south- values

east tip of the SLO basin, which indicates

pumping of more than 200 AFY. This red repQrted by

hexagon is located entirely over Varian Varian Ranch.

Ranch. Yet the total amount of water pumped Section 4.3 was

(and metered) from the wells on Varian Ranch edited to

were only 36.0 AF in 2020 and 37.2 AF in reference the

2021. Where is the remaining pumping coming fact that in the

from in this area of the basin? Or, should that future the

hexagon be changed to lime green (>25-50)7? . .
citrus trees will

2) Comment regarding Figure 12, Irrigated require more

Agriculture 2020: applied
irrigation than

Personal observations indicate there is a they currently

growing number of acres overlying this basin do

that are being converted over the last five to ten ’

years from range land, grass lands and

vineyards to citrus orchards. The report should

indicate the average amount of irrigation water

needed for various agricultural purposes, along

with a summary of all shifts in land use over

time that results in positive or negative impacts

to the underlying water resource.

Respectfully,

Rod Curb

Tim Bennet 2/22/22 | Dear Mr. Zuniga...

| appreciate your accepting my public-
comment on the San Luis Obispo Valley
Groundwater Basin Annual Report (Water
Years 2020-2021).

| was on the February 9th zoom-call, but did
not weigh in with any questions/comments
hoping to better understand the issues.

The GSP and the
Annual Reports are
part of ongoing plans
by the City and County
to responsibly manage
groundwater resources
in the Basin. These may




Today, | do have some concerns to share that
apply more to the context of the report than its
contents.

Simply, | believe that we need to include in any
water-related reports some link or reference
between the reality surrounding our city, our
county and the long term trend of severe
drought impacting all of us and and any water
basin, groundwater, aquifer assessments.
These reports are not mutually exclusive but
linked.

| appreciate the work that goes into these
reports. And I'm a firm believer that you
"manage what you measure." Yet | also believe
that we need to acknowledge factors like the
following, and remind our community in every
report the "canary in the coal mine.”

FACTORS--GOOD & BAD--IMPACTING OUR
COMMUNITIES THREATENED WATER
SOURCES (in no particular order):

e Learn from Santa Barbara's
desalination plant which produces 3
million gallons of drinkable water each
day or 30% of the city's needs.
https://cutt.ly/xPUXAV4 - where is the
SLO County desalination plan?

e Consider "The American West is
drying up before our very
eyes"...today America’s largest
reservoir Lake Mead looks like a shell
of it's former self, hitting a new record
low water level of 1068 according to a
report from the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation. (https://cutt.ly/NPUVIiY)

e Acknowledge Cambria: Living on the
Edge of Drought...Solely reliant on
groundwater wells in the San Simeon
Creek and Santa Rosa Creek aquifers,
the Cambria Community Services
District in January 2014 declared a
drought emergency, limiting water use

be viewed as part and
parcel of parallel
efforts including the
City’s Urban Water
Management Plan, the
County’s Master Water
Report Update, state
water drought
contingency plans, etc.



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcutt.ly%2FxPUXAV4&data=04%7C01%7Cbzuniga%40co.slo.ca.us%7C482425f3406b4ed014ed08d9f61424ff%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C637811389560693604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=EkHUVFIwjLUIKslf%2B5lRdJiWdb8PP4nTbdleXm3o%2F%2B0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcutt.ly%2FNPUVliY&data=04%7C01%7Cbzuniga%40co.slo.ca.us%7C482425f3406b4ed014ed08d9f61424ff%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C637811389560693604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ZJOOfUderKvrYnuL67SsTaJaZEDvPIBYmWhry6NYcjQ%3D&reserved=0

to 50 gallons per person each day and
closing public restrooms.
(https://cutt.ly/VPUBICK)

e Reference SLO's Water Shortage
Contingency Plan - in every water
related study that's produced | believe
it's helpful to site our county's or city's
latest "water shortage contingency
plan" as a reality check for
homeowners, builders, developers,
vineyards, farmers, etc.
(https://cutt.ly/1PUNIUI). And what
happens to each stakeholder as we hit
new lows.

Sadly, we may not be that far away from
Critical or Defcon 1. And we all need to be
frequently reminded of what that means to
each stakeholder.

While many in SLO County and City were
relieved over the December 2021 rains which
soaked some of the Central Coast, we're
equally aware of a virtually dry January and
February 2022. Per PGE meteorologist
(Tribune, 2.20.2022), John Lindsey, "The last
time Diablo Canyon recorded measurable rain
was on Dec. 29, 2021, 53 days without any rain
at the peak of our rainfall season. That is the
longest streak without any precipitation in
January and February at the power plant."

Tim Bennett



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcutt.ly%2FVPUBlCk&data=04%7C01%7Cbzuniga%40co.slo.ca.us%7C482425f3406b4ed014ed08d9f61424ff%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C637811389560693604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=TdlW2UINj1B5Og59jdGP4bxQ%2BUp6yQt5srU5%2FoanNdk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcutt.ly%2F1PUNlUI&data=04%7C01%7Cbzuniga%40co.slo.ca.us%7C482425f3406b4ed014ed08d9f61424ff%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C637811389560693604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=u2NwitWnL3UP4WG%2B5zACHfFUpbMwlNgF7VSddYWnOpQ%3D&reserved=0

	20220317_SLO_GSC_Agenda
	6 - Draft GSC Minutes 020922 JS
	7 - 1Memo - Annual Report
	7 - A1 - SLO Basin 1st Annual Report_3-11-22
	Contents
	Abbreviations and Acronyms
	Annual Report Elements Guide and Checklist
	Executive Summary (§ 356.2[a])
	Introduction
	Groundwater Elevations
	Groundwater Extractions
	Surface Water Use
	Total Water Use
	Change in Groundwater in Storage
	Progress towards Meeting Basin Sustainability

	Section 1: Introduction -- San Luis Obispo Basin First Annual Report (Water Years 2020–2021)
	1.1 Setting and Background
	1.2 Organization of This Report

	Section 2: San Luis Obispo Valley Basin Setting and Monitoring Networks
	2.1 Introduction
	2.2 Basin Setting
	2.3 Precipitation and Climatic Periods
	2.4 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (§ 356.2[b])
	2.4.1 Groundwater Elevation Monitoring Locations
	2.4.2 Monitoring Data Gaps

	2.5 Additional Monitoring

	Section 3: Groundwater Elevations (§ 356.2[b][1])
	3.1 Introduction
	3.1.1 Principal Aquifers

	3.2 Seasonal High and Low (Spring and Fall) (§ 356.2[b][1][A])
	3.2.1 Basin Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours

	3.3 Hydrographs (§ 356.2[b][1][B])
	3.3.1 Hydrographs


	Section 4: Groundwater Extractions (§ 356.2[b][2])
	4.1 Introduction
	4.2 Municipal Metered Well Production Data
	4.3 Estimate of Agricultural Extraction

	Section 5: Surface Water Use (§ 356.2[b][3])
	5.1 Introduction
	5.2 Total Surface Water Use

	Section 6: Total Water Use (§ 356.2[b][4])
	Section 7: Change in Groundwater in Storage (§ 356.2[b][5])
	7.1 Annual Changes in Groundwater Elevation (§ 356.2[b][5][A])
	7.2 Annual and Cumulative Change in Groundwater in Storage Calculations (§ 356.2[b][5][B])

	Section 8: Progress toward Basin Sustainability (§ 356.2[c])
	8.1 Introduction
	8.2 Implementation Approach
	8.3 Basin-Wide Management Actions and Projects
	8.3.1 Creation of New County Position for Director of Groundwater Sustainability
	8.3.2 Expand Basin Well Monitoring Network
	8.3.3 Continuing Identification and Pursuit of Funding Opportunities
	8.3.4 GSA Boundary Modifications

	8.4 Area-Specific Projects
	8.4.1 City of San Luis Obispo Recycled Water Program
	8.4.2 Sentinel Peak Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project
	8.4.3 San Luis Obispo Recycled Water to Edna Valley Project

	8.5 Summary of Progress toward Meeting Basin Sustainability
	8.5.1 Subsidence
	8.5.2 Interconnected Surface Water
	8.5.3 Groundwater Quality
	8.5.4 Summary of Changes in Basin Conditions
	8.5.5 Summary of Impacts of Projects and Management Actions


	References




